
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
JASPER COUNTY, GEORGIA 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
****LARGE COURTROOM – 2ND FLOOR**** 

MONTICELLO, GEORGIA 
March 6, 2023 

6:00 p.m. 
*** The meeting will be live streamed Via Facebook on the Jasper County Georgia Facebook Page. 

 

I. Call to Order (6:00 p.m.)                                  

NAME PRESENT ABSENT LATE ARRIVED 

DISTRICT 1 – SHEILA G. JONES, VICE-CHAIR     
DISTRICT 2 – BRUCE HENRY     

DISTRICT 3 – DON JERNIGAN, CHAIR     

DISTRICT 4 – GERALD STUNKEL      

DISTRICT 5  - STEVEN LEDFORD     

  

 II.     Pledge of Allegiance –       

III.    Invocation – District 1 
         

 IV.    Approval of Agenda 
            

 V.      Consent Agenda –  
1.  Approval of Minutes: 

• February 6, 2023 - Regular Meeting Minutes 
 

2.   Check Register – Check #’s     66881 - 67163 
  

VI.   Public Hearing  
Public Hearings are conducted to allow public comments on specific advertised issues such as rezoning, 
ordinances, policy development and other legislative actions to be considered by the County 
Commissioners.  Following the public hearing, the Board of Commissioners will take action on each 
item presented below.  

1. A public hearing will be held on a Final Plat for Lakeview Estates, Phase 2, located off of Lloyd Street,                 

Map & Parcel 031A 035. The request is to finalize the approved Preliminary Plat for a total of 10 lots 

on 21.98 acres. 

2. A Public Hearing will be held for Amendments to Part II, Code of Ordinances which include: Chapter 

105 – Development Standards & Regulations, Sec. 105-28. – General definitions; Section 105-162 – 

Conservation Subdivision Design, subsection 3.C; and Chapter 119 – Zoning, Sec. 119-48 

Conventional zoning districts; Sec. 119-95 Relationship between land use and zoning districts; Sec. 

119-244 Development Standards; Sec. 119-269 Table of Permitted Uses; Sec. 119-196 R-2 Single-

Family Residential District, Low Intensity; Sec. 119-197 R-1 Single-Family Residential District, 

Medium Density; Sec. 119-198 RL Residential Lake Districts; Sec. 119-199 V-P Village Plan Mixed-

Use Residential District; Division 6 V-P Village Plan Mixed Use District Development Standards 

including Sec. 119-287 through Sec. 119-302; Sec. 119-347 Application of parking requirements; Sec. 

119-348 Minimum requirements for off-street parking. 



XIII. Executive Session 
 

  
 

Presentation/Delegations allows scheduled speakers to address the Commission for not more than ten 
(10) minutes on specific topics or for recognition of citizens, county employees or other events by the 
Commissioners.  
  

• Long Term Recovery Group Discussion – Ed Westbrook 
• Long Term Recovery Group Proclamation 

 
 
 
The Citizens Comments section of the Agenda allows citizens who sign up to address the Commission 
for not more than three (3) minutes on specific topics.   The County Attorney will keep time.  Please  
be courteous of the 3 minute time limit. Comments noted from citizens via the Jasper County FB Page. 

VIX. County Commissioner Items  
 

X.   Regular Agenda  

 
Business Items: 

1. FP23-001 – Approval process for Phase 2 of Lakeview Estates  
2. Ordinance Amendment to the Development Regulations and Zoning Ordinance to update definitions and 

Residential Zoning Districts designations 
3. Renewal of 2023 Alcohol License for Bear Creek Marina Restaurant 
4. Jasper County Recreation Board Appointment 
5. 2022 & 2023 LMIG Project – Jackson Lake Rd from SR 11 to SR 212 – Bid Results 
6. Public Works Right of Way Mower – Bid Results 
7. Tree and Limb Debris Removal Services – Tornado Damage Area - Bid Results 
8. Vehicle Quotes – Senior Center 
9. Monticello Post Office – Handicap Accessibility – Letter to US Senators and Rep. 
10. Application for Congressionally Directed Spending (CDS) Request for FY 2024 – Recreation Park 

Improvements 
11. ACCG Georgia County Internship Program Grant Agreement 
12. Vehicle Quotes – County Manager Vehicle 
13. Human Resources and County Boards Report 
14. Schedule Work Sessions and Called Meetings As Needed 

 

XI.   County Attorney Items 

XII.   County Manager Update 

 
 
 

Consultation with County attorney to discuss pending or potential litigation as provided by O.C.G.A.  
§50-14-2(1); Discussion of the future acquisition of real estate as provided by O.C.G.A. §50-14-3(4); 
and discussion on employment, compensation, or periodic evaluation of county employees as provided 
in O.C.G.A. § 50-14-3(6)  

To Be Held 

XIV. Adjournment  

VIII. Citizens Comments 

VII. Presentations/Delegations 



Consent Agenda – Item 1: 

 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:  March 6, 2023 
 
Subject:  Approval of Minutes 
 
Summary: 
 
 
Minutes have been completed for the Jasper County Board of Commissioners: 

 
• February 6, 2023 - Regular Meeting Minutes 

 
 

Background: 
 
 
Cost:  $0 
 
 
Recommended Motion: 
 
Approve minutes for:  
 

• February 6, 2023 - Regular Meeting Minutes 
  



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes February 6, 2023 – Regular Meeting  
 

        
   Jasper County Board of Commissioners 

February 6, 2023 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

6:00 P.M. 
 
Chairman Henry called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
Commissioners Present: Bruce Henry, Chairman, Gerald, Stunkel, Vice-Chairman, Don Jernigan, Sheila Jones 
and Steven Ledford.  
 
Staff: Mike Benton, County Manager, Larissa Ruark, Chief Accounting Officer, and David Ozburn, County 
Attorney.  

Pledge of Allegiance: 
Invocation:  Commissioner Steven Ledford 
 
Agenda Approval:  Commissioner Ledford ask that the agenda be changed so that an Executive Session be 
held between Agenda approval and Consent Agenda. Commissioner Stunkel seconded the motion, passed 
unanimously.  
 
Executive Session: 
Commissioner Ledford motioned to go into Executive Session at 6:03 p.m. Commissioner Stunkel seconded the 
motion, passed unanimously.  
 
Commissioner Ledford motioned to exit the Executive Session at 6:32 p.m. Commissioner Jones seconded the 
motion, passed unanimously.  
 
Commissioner Ledford motioned to go into regular session at 6:33 p.m. Commissioner Stunkel seconded the 
motion, passed unanimously.  
 
Commissioner Stunkel motioned to add the hiring of an interim attorney to the agenda. Commissioner Ledford 
seconded the motion, passed unanimously.  
 
Commissioner Ledford motioned to hire Barry Fleming with Fleming & Nelson as the interim County Attorney 
Commissioner Jones seconded the motion, passed unanimously.  
 
Consent Agenda:  
Commissioner Jernigan motion to approve the minutes for:     

• January 9, 2023- Regular Meeting Minutes  
 

Commissioner Jones seconded the motion, passed unanimously.  
 
Commissioner Ledford motioned to approve Check #s 66660-66880. Commissioner Jones seconded the motion, 
passed unanimously.  
 
Public Hearings:  Commissioner Ledford motioned to go into Public Hearing at 6:34 p.m. Commissioner 
Stunkel seconded the motion, passed unanimously.    
 

1. A Public Hearing will be held for an update of the FY 2022 Capital Improvements Element (CIE) and 
the Short Term Work Program (STWP) of Jasper County's Development Impact Fee Program as 
required annually by the Department of Community Affairs. 
 



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes February 6, 2023 – Regular Meeting  
 

Commissioner Henry motioned that we approve the update as presented. Commissioner Ledford 
seconded the motion, passed unanimously.  
 
Mary Patrick- Stated that code enforcement is important. She complained about “No Thru Truck” road 
not enforced. Rolling Wood Cove needs to be enforced and addressed.  
 
Chris Florence- Talked about people helping during the tornado. 
 
Kathy Benson- Wants the county to require lots of 3-5 acres.  
 
Asher Gray- Signs need to be on State Routes before the road that does not allow Thru Trucks.  

 
Commissioner Stunkel motioned to exit the Public Hearing at 6:43 p.m. Commissioner Jones seconded the 
motion, passed unanimously.  
 
Presentations/Delegations-  
 
1.  David McCoy - McNair, McLemore, Middlebrooks & Co., LLC - FY2022 Audit Report 

            Mr. McCoy presented the FY 2022 Audit Report to the Board of Commissioners. 

Commissioner Ledford motioned to accept the audit report. Commissioner Stunkel seconded the motion, passed 
unanimously.  

2.  January 12, 2023 Tornado Damage and Recovery Update – Jasper County EMA, GEMA and FEMA 
 
Representatives from Jasper County EMA, GEMA, and FEMA gave their respective updates for the                   
Tornado damage and recovery. They all discussed resources that are available to residents in the area.  

 
Citizens Comments: 

• Asher Gray (Bailey Road) - Mr. Gray stated that the county attorney is under investigation. 
• Chris Florence (Bailey Road) - Spoke about not wanting any new neighborhoods.  
• Jason Bunn (Bailey Road) - Spoke out against R2 zoning.  
• Kathy Benson (Lakeshore Drive) - Ms. Benson spoke about an article that she read.  
• Mary Patrick (Monticello) – Ms. Patrick stated that she have a problem with the county’s website.  
• John Henderson (Herds Creek Road) -   Mr. Henderson stated that he wants to see our impact fee 

increased. He would like to see people come here spend their money and go home.  
• Robert Peek (Jackson Lake Road) - Mr. Peek suggested placing speed bumps on Jackson Lake Road.  
• Susan Moore (Quiet Cove Way) - Ms. Moore suggested that Commissioner Stunkel resign and 

accused him of malfeasance. 
• Stan Studdard (Long Piney Road) - Mr. Studdard stated that he feel like the R2 is a bad idea and its 

going to bring more people and more schools. He feels this would divide the county. It would bring 
people not like us. We should keep it this way. People up North have different views and different views 
than us.  

• Sherry Benton (Landers Way) - Ms. Benton stated that she would like for her road to be returned to 
pre-tornado condition.  

 
County Commissioner’s Items 
Commissioner Ledford- Commissioner Ledford thanked everyone for stepping up and helping out with the 
tornado repair.  
 
Commissioner Stunkel- None 



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes February 6, 2023 – Regular Meeting  
 

Commissioner Jernigan- Commissioner Jernigan thanked everyone for all of their help with the tornado clean-
up. Commissioner Jernigan introduced the new Recreation Director Keldrick Davis along with the Recreation 
Coordinator Robert Rosser.  
 
Commissioner Jones- None 
  
Chairman Henry- Commissioner Henry thanked everyone for help with the tornado clean-up. 
 
Business Items:  
Item 1: FY 2022 Audit Acceptance by the Board of Commissioners:   Commissioner Ledford motioned to 
accept the FY 2022 Audit and Findings as presented. Commissioner Jones seconded the motion, passed 
unanimously.  
 
Item 2:  Long Term Recovery Committee:  Mr. Ed Westbrook spoke about what’s need to create a committee 
that will help with disaster recovery. This committee will serve long term and will assist in other disasters or 
instances as well. There should be people who have some means (i.e. CareCorp, Clergy). The board decided to 
hold a work session at a later date to discuss the matter in detail at a later date.  
 
Item 3: Fiscal Agent Designation for Family Connection Collaborative- FY 2023: Commissioner Henry motioned to 
authorize Chairman Jernigan to sign the Fiscal Agent Designation for the Family Connection Collaborative.  
 
Item 4:  City of Monticello 2023 Municipal Elections- Intergovernmental Agreement: Commissioner 
Ledford motioned to authorize Chairman to sign the IGA “Agreement by Monticello and Jasper County for 
Monticello Elections 2023” after changing the address for the county attorney. Commissioner Jones seconded 
the motion, passed unanimously.  
 
Commissioner Henry motioned to have the City of Monticello prorate the electric bill during their election. 
Commissioner Ledford seconded the motion, passed unanimously.  
 
Item 5: Monticello City Council Request to Annex Parcel 034 067 into the Incorporated Limits of 
Monticello:  Commissioner Ledford motioned to authorize BOC to sign Resolution #2023.02.6B providing 
consent to allow annexation of Parcel 034 067 into the incorporated limits of the City of Monticello. 
Commissioner Jones seconded the motion, passed unanimously.  
 
Item 6: Sheriff’s Office/Jail Addition & Renovation Project- Funding from Fund #200- Jail Fund: Sheriff 
Pope discussed his request to utilize $82,173 from the Special Revenue Fund #200- for new laundry equipment 
and existing Security Electronics Integration.   
 
Commissioner Stunkel motioned to approve the request to use Fund #200 for the Jail upgrades. Commissioner 
Jones seconded the motion, passed 4-1 (Henry Opposed).  
  
Item 7: Sheriff’s Office/Jail Addition & Renovation Project- Invoice Approval Process: Commissioner 
Stunkel motioned to approve Mike Benton (County Manager), Don Jernigan (BOC Chairman) and Bruce Henry 
(Commissioner) to sign off on invoices related to the Sheriff’s Office/Jail Addition & Renovation Project. 
Commissioner Ledford seconded the motion, passed unanimously.  
 
Item 8: FY 2023 2nd Quarter Financial Report: Larissa Ruark presented the financial report for the 2nd 
quarter FY 2023. The total General Fund Budget revenue actual is $9,905,543 that has been collected.  The total 
actual expenditures is $6,855,669. 
 
Item 9: FY 2024 Budget Calendar- Approval: Commissioner Ledford motioned to approve the FY 2024 
budget calendar. Commissioner Jones seconded the motion, passed unanimously.  
 



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes February 6, 2023 – Regular Meeting  
 

Item 10: 2022 Capital Improvements Element Update: Commissioner Ledford motioned to approve 
resolution #2023-02-06-CIE authorizing the draft updated of the Annual Capital Improvements Element and 
Short Term Work Program for FY 2021 be submitted to the Northeast Georgia Regional Commission for 
review and then forwarded to the DCA for State review. Commissioner Henry seconded the motion, passed 
unanimously.  
 
Item 11: Schedule Work Sessions and Called Meetings as Needed:  The Board of Commissioners scheduled 
a Work Session for February 27, 2023. 
 
County Attorney Items: None  
County Manager Update: Mike Benton gave an updated of the numbers for building permits for the past year.  
 
None 
 
Adjourn: Commissioner Ledford motioned to adjourn the meeting at 9:01 p.m. Commissioner Jones seconded 
the motion, passed unanimously. 
 

___________________________ 

Don Jernigan, Chairman 

 

___________________________ 

Sharon Robinson, Clerk       



 

 
Consent Agenda – Item 2: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Board of Commissioners 
 
Date: March, 2023 
 
Subject:  Approval of Check Register 
 
 
Summary: 
 
A check register will be generated by the finance department on meeting day for signature and approval to 
process the checks. 
 
Background: 
 
Cost:  $0 
 
 
Recommended Motion: 
 
Approve processing of check #’s 66881 - 67163  
  
 
 
  



 
 
 
Public Hearings: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:   March 6, 2023 
 
Subject: Public Hearings  
 
 

The Jasper County Board of Commissioners will hold a public hearing on the following items at their meeting 
on Monday, March 6, 2023 beginning at 6:00 pm in the Commissioners Meeting Room on the ground floor of 
the Historic Courthouse located at 126 W. Greene St, Monticello, GA 31064. 

1. A Final Plat for Lakeview Estates, Phase 2, located off of Lloyd Street, Map & Parcel 031A 035. The 
request is to finalize the approved Preliminary Plat for a total of 10 lots on 21.98 acres. 

2. A Public Hearing will be held for Amendments to Part II, Code of Ordinances which include: Chapter 
105 – Development Standards & Regulations, Sec. 105-28. – General definitions; Section 105-162 – 
Conservation Subdivision Design, subsection 3.C; and Chapter 119 – Zoning, Sec. 119-48 Conventional 
zoning districts; Sec. 119-95 Relationship between land use and zoning districts; Sec. 119-244 
Development Standards; Sec. 119-269 Table of Permitted Uses; Sec. 119-196 R-2 Single-Family 
Residential District, Low Intensity; Sec. 119-197 R-1 Single-Family Residential District, Medium 
Density; Sec. 119-198 RL Residential Lake Districts; Sec. 119-199 V-P Village Plan Mixed-Use 
Residential District; Division 6 V-P Village Plan Mixed Use District Development Standards including 
Sec. 119-287 through Sec. 119-302; Sec. 119-347 Application of parking requirements; Sec. 119-348 
Minimum requirements for off-street parking. 

The amendments to the Development Standards & Regulations will address amending definitions for 
Conservation Subdivision and Setback, combining the R1 & R2 districts into a single district named RES, and 
deleting in reference to RL, R1, R2 or V-P zoning districts.  The amendments to the Zoning Ordinance include 
deleting any reference to R2 zoning and combining R2 and R1 into a single zoning district entitled RES; 
deleting any reference to RL zoning district; deleting any reference to V-P Village Plan zoning district; and 
consideration of reduced house size on existing lots of record only if the lot size is less than 1 acre. If any 
sections in the above paragraph does not encompass all sections in which the zoning districts RL, R1, R2 or VP 
appear, then the advertisement will also cover the entirety of Chapter 105 – Development Standards & 
Regulations and Chapter 119 – Zoning for those purposes only. 

The public is invited to attend and those with special needs related to handicapped accessibility, should contact 
the Planning and Zoning office at 706-468-4905 or 706-468-4940.  Based on number of people in attendance 
for the meeting(s), the meeting location may be moved to the small courtroom on the 2nd floor of the Historic 
Courthouse. 

 
  



22

21

30

29

28

27

TURBINE DRIVE

31

32

33

34

NOF
026 001

GLENDA C. PEAKE
D.B. 549, p. 204

P.B. 9, p. 66
Zoned AG

1/2" REBAR

1/2" REBAR

1/2" REBAR

1/2" REBAR

1/2" REBAR

1/
2"

 R
EB

AR
DI

ST
UR

BE
D

1/2" REBAR

5/8" REBAR
1/2" REBAR

WITH GPC CAP

1/
2"

 R
EB

AR
W

IT
H 

GP
C 

CA
P

1/2" REBAR
WITH GPC CAP

1/2" REBAR
WITH GPC CAP

NOF
031A 035

GEORGIA POWER COMPANY
D.B. 610, p. 80
P.B. 11, p. 371

GPC DWG NO. M-199
Zoned R1

LLOYD SHOALS - PORTERDALE 115kV

TRANSMISSION LINE

GPC MAP NO. H-108 SHEET 1

1/2" REBAR
WITH GPC

CAP

TIE:  N16°58'52"W
  154.46'

NOF
031 007

FIRECRACKER HILL, LLC
D.B. 353, p. 76
P.B. 9, p. 124

Zoned AG

60' R/W

NOF
026 001

GLENDA C. PEAKE
D.B. 549, p. 204

P.B. 9, p. 66
Zoned AG

20' EASEMENT DEDICATED TO JCWSA P.B. 11, p. 451

LL
OYD

 ST
RE

ET

60
' R

/W

JA
CK

SO
N 80

' R
/W

LL 186

LL 187

LL 190

LL 191

APPROXIMATE
LAND LOT CORNER

L3

100' STREAM BUFFER

100' STREAM BUFFER

100' STATE W
ATERS BUFFER

P.O.B.

NOF
031A 035

GEORGIA POWER COMPANY
D.B. 610, p. 80
P.B. 11, p. 371

GPC DWG NO. M-199
Zoned R1

40

42

45

44

43

4647
48

49

41

15
' S

ID
E 

BS
L

15' SIDE BSL

15' SIDE BSL

N47°39'13"W  436.04'

N31°58'36"W
330.09'

S31°58'36"E
62.38'

S16°16'13"E  318.93'

N28°38'06"W
  194.19'

N50°04'18"W
Ch=18.26'

R=24.98'
A=18.69'

N41°23'49"E
Ch=92.05'

R=49.97'
A=196.92'

N64°17'58"E  489.54'

S43°54'35"E  87.72'

S43°54'35"E  339.51'

S43°54'35"E  477.91'

S4
6°35'51"W

  1
87.98'

S4
6°02'24"W

  1
46.11'

S47°44'39"W
  2

21.59'

N66°41'46"W  265.22'

N66°46'39"W  114.96'

N47°32'37"W  181.13'

N47°22'23"W  118.01'

S5°12'38"E  208.73'

S5°26'52"E  221.95' S40°28'05"E  350.17'

N70°03'15"E  277.44'

N2
3°

04
'4

4"
E 

 2
72

.8
1'

N
3°

01
'1

1"
E 

 2
66

.7
6'

N17°35'01"W
  294.32'

N
3°

01
'1

1"
E 

 8
2.

70
'

N3°39'57"W
Ch=72.07'
R=505.20'

A=72.13'

N86°39'49"E  157.75'

N89°07'16"E  120.36' N89°07'16"E  105.46'

S42°09'59"E  138.65'

S70°18'07"E  104.46' N62°29'56"E  87.63'

N63°20'28"E

63.94'

S46°07'53"E  127.61'

S15°40'03"E
135.17'

S6
°4

5'
54

"W
  4

27
.9

4'

S7
°0

1'
36

"W

73
.2

4'

N86°39'49"E  269.57'

L2 N87°29'12"W
100.00'

C8
C7

C6

C5

C4
C3

C2S87°29'07"E  98.71'

0.50
ACRE

30' BSL

15' BSL

30' BSL

78' BSL

L1

0.51
ACRE

1.02
ACRE

1.43
ACRE

30' BSL

1.19
ACRE

0.66
ACRE1.06

ACRE
1.00
ACRE

C9C10

C11

C12

20' EASEMENT
DEDICATED TO JCWSA

P.B. 11, p. 451

1.41
ACRE

N53°04'41"W  459.45'

1.54
ACRE

S63°43'14"W
Ch=160.38'
R=366.86'
A=161.68'

N66°22'09"W

91.48'

CROSS HATCH
REPRESENTS

NO-DISTURBANCE
EASEMENT FOR

PORTIONS OF LOTS
42-47 HAVING

SLOPES OVER 25%

UNDISTURBED EASEM
ENT

AREA FOR LOTS 42-47

LLOYD STREET60' R/W

LA
KE

RD

N:1209964.67
E:2400273.52

C1

EXIST
IN

G ASP
HALT

 PAVEMENT

22' ASPHALT PAVEMENT

EXISTING 8" PVC

WATER MAIN

FH

CROSS HATCH
REPRESENTS

NO-DISTURBANCE
EASEMENT FOR

PORTIONS OF LOTS
42-47 HAVING

SLOPES OVER 25%

15
' S

ID
E 

BS
L

30
' B

SL

58' BSL

49' BSL

30' BSL

18" CM
P

GREENSPACE
COMMON AREA

10.81 ACRES
(49.2% OF PROJECT AREA)

R/W PARCEL

AREA IS 0.85 ACRE

100' RIPARIAN CO
RRIDO

R

100' RIPARIAN CORRIDOR

IPS AT
POWER POLE

LINE TABLE
Line

L1

L2

L3

Direction

S87°29'07"E

N87°29'07"W

N38°40'00"W

Length

48.86'

47.90'

60.00'

CURVE TABLE
Curve

C1

C2

C3

C4

C5

C6

C7

C8

C9

C10

C11

C12

Chd Brng

N84°26'48"E

S63°14'12"E

S60°10'42"E

N74°04'53"E

N15°00'09"E

N43°13'26"W

S78°32'53"W

S67°53'06"W

N89°46'57"W

S86°21'55"W

S76°24'33"W

S59°33'10"W

Chd Len

103.38'

20.54'

41.93'

48.20'

65.75'

46.62'

65.75'

20.23'

34.66'

22.72'

125.16'

125.08'

Radius

366.86'

25.00'

58.00'

58.00'

58.00'

58.00'

58.00'

25.00'

426.82'

426.82'

426.82'

426.82'

Arc

103.73'

21.16'

42.90'

49.70'

69.91'

47.98'

69.91'

20.83'

34.67'

22.73'

125.61'

125.54'

50' BSL
50' BSL

50' BSL

50' BSL

CROSS HATCH
REPRESENTS

NO-DISTURBANCE
EASEMENT FOR

PORTIONS OF LOTS
42-47 HAVING

SLOPES OVER 25%

STORMWATER
MANAGEMENTPOND #1

STORM POND #1
ACCESS/MAINTENANCE

EASEMENT

EASEMENT
STORM DRAIN

20' EASEMENT
DEDICATED TO JCWSA

P.B. 11, p. 451

18" CM
P

30' BSL

STORMWATER
MANAGEMENT

POND #2
GRAVEL ACCESS ROAD

TO GREENSPACE AREA

120

100 90 80
70

30

45

65

75

95

g
r
id

FOR CLERK'S OFFICE USE

SUBJECT PROPERTY INFORMATION:
CURRENT OWNER:  WADE HOMES, INC.
DEED RECORD: D.B. 974, p. 289
PLAT RECORD: P.B. 11, p. 26; P.B. 11, p. 371; P.B. 11, p. 451
TAX RECORD: TAX PARCEL 031A 035

THIS PLAT CLOSURE ACCURACY IS 1 FOOT IN 738,680 FT.

FIELD DATA WAS COLLECTED USING A LEICA TS12 ROBOTIC TOTAL
STATION AND A JAVAD TRIUMPH-LS DUAL-FREQUENCY RTK GLOBAL
POSITIONING SYSTEM RECEIVER REFERENCING THE eGPS STATEWIDE
NETWORK AND HAVING A RELATIVE POSITIONAL ACCURACY OF LESS
THAN 0.04 FEET.

THE EXTERIOR BOUNDARY SURVEY WAS COMPLETED IN MARCH
2021.  LOT PINS SET IN DECEMBER 2022.

THE PROPERTY SHOWN HEREON IS NOT LOCATED WITHIN A
FLOODPLAIN AS DETERMINED FROM THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY
MANAGEMENT AGENCY MAP PANEL 13159C 0125C FOR JASPER
COUNTY, GEORGIA DATED 6/7/2017.

EASEMENTS OR RIGHTS-OF-WAY MAY EXIST WHICH ARE NOT
SHOWN HEREON AND MAY BE RECORDED OR UNRECORDED.

HORIZONTAL: STATE PLANE, WEST ZONE, NAD83 (2011).  VERTICAL
DATUM: NAVD88.

A 25-FOOT UNDISTURBED BUFFER IS ESTABLISHED BY THE STATE OF
GEORGIA FROM THE TOP OF CREEK BANKS ON BOTH SIDES OF
CREEKS FOR EROSION CONTROL PURPOSES.

PROPERTY BOUNDARY
OVERHEAD POWER
EASEMENT
ADJOINING PROPERTY LINE
CREEK OR SHORELINE
EXISTING ASPHALT PAVEMENT
EDGE OF DIRT/GRAVEL

LL

P.O.B.

D.B.

POWER POLE

POINT OF BEGINNING

DEED BOOK
P.B.

LAND LOT
PLAT BOOK

2/
1

BEARING CHANGE (NO PIN SET)
" SOLID ROD (REBAR) SET

OPEN-TOP PIPE FOUND

LEGEND

SOLID ROD (REBAR) FOUND P.O.R. POINT OF REFERENCE
NOF NOW OR FORMERLY

OTP OPEN-TOP PIPE

SURVEYOR'S TRAVERSE NAIL SET

CMF CONCRETE MON. FD

SURVEYOR'S PK NAIL SET

DENOTES PAINTED TREES OR FENCE NEAR PROPERTY LINE.
LETTER IS CODE BELOW, NUMBER IS FEET FROM LINE, AND
ARROW IS DIRECTION FROM LINE THAT EVIDENCE WAS FOUND.

B: BLUE PAINT
W: WHITE PAINT
Y: YELLOW PAINT
R: RED PAINT

TP: STEEL TEE POST
HW: HOG WIRE
BW: BARBED WIRE
CL: CHAIN LINK

STORM DRAIN EASEMENT

(706) 468-8999      www.jordan-eng.com
144 N. WARREN ST.   MONTICELLO, GA 31064

Engineering    Surveying    Soils    UAV Mapping

Corporate License No. LSF 000768

SCALE 1" = 60'

0' 60' 120' 180'

VICINITY MAP
N.T.S.

SITE

WATER LINE DEDICATION CERTIFICATION:

STATE OF GEORGIA, COUNTY OF JASPER
THE WATERLINE EASEMENTS ARE DEDICATED TO THE JASPER
COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY.

BY:_________________________________ DATE:____________
       WADE CRAWFORD,  WADE HOMES, INC.

WATER AUTHORITY CERTIFICATION:

THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE WATER SYSTEM FOR THIS SUBDIVISION
HAS BEEN COMPLETED AND IS ELIGIBLE FOR ACCEPTANCE BY THE
AUTHORITY.

BY:_________________________________ DATE:____________
        JASPER COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY

HEALTH DEPARTMENT CERTIFICATION:

THIS PRELIMINARY PLAT IS APPROVED BY THE JASPER COUNTY
HEALTH DEPARTMENT PENDING FINAL APPROVAL OF THE
DEVELOPMENT FINAL PLAT WITH ASSOCIATED CONDITIONS.

BY:_________________________________ DATE:____________
                        DAVID MERCER
       JASPER COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT

PROJECT DEVELOPMENT NOTES:
CURRENT ZONING CLASSIFICATION FOR THIS SIGHT IS R1
SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL, WHICH HAS A MINIMUM LOT SIZE
WITH PUBLIC WATER OF 0.7 ACRES.  THIS LAYOUT REFLECTS JASPER
COUNTY REQUIREMENT FOR GREENSPACE CONSERVATION DESIGN
WITH SOME LOTS MADE SMALLER THAN THE ZONING AREA
MINIMUM.  A HARDSHIP EXEMPTION WAS APPROVED TO ALLOW
SOME SLOPES >25% TO BE INCLUDED IN BUILDABLE LOTS; HOWEVER
AREAS OF SLOPE >25% WITHIN BUILDABLE LOTS ARE OVERLAIN BY A
PERPETUAL NON-DISTURBANCE EASEMENT AS DEPICTED HEREON.

TOTAL PROJECT AREA: 21.98 ACRES
TOTAL LOTS:  10 LOTS

CURRENT ZONING CLASSIFICATION FOR THIS SIGHT IS R1,
SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL.  BASED ON THE ORDINANCE IN PLACE
AT THE TIME OF THE PRELIMINARY PLAT APPROVAL, THE MINIMUM
LOT SIZE WITH PUBLIC WATER WAS 0.7 ACRES.  THE CONSERVATION
DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE ALLOWED LOT SIZE, FRONTAGE, AND
WIDTH REDUCTIONS TO HEALTH DEPARTMENT MINIMUMS FOR
SOME LOTS.

MINIMUM DWELLING SQUARE FOOTAGE 1,800 SQ FT

SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL (R-1):  10 LOTS
MINIMUM LOT WIDTH: 100 FT
MINIMUM ROAD FRONTAGE: 100 FT
MINIMUM CUL-DE-SAC FRONTAGE:    60 FT
MINIMUM FRONT YARD SETBACK:       30 FT
MINIMUM SIDE YARD SETBACK:     30 FT

THE LLOYD STREET RIGHT-OF-WAY SHOWN IS AN EXTENSION OF
EXISTING LLOYD STREET, WHICH IS A PUBLIC COUNTY-MAINTAINED
ROAD.  THIS NEW SECTION SHALL BE PUBLIC AND
COUNTY-MAINTAINED ALSO.  ASPHALT WIDTH IS 22 FEET.

ROAD LENGTH AS FOLLOWS:
ROAD NAME LENGTH
LLOYD STREET  539 LF

TOTAL ROAD LENGTH            539 LF

JASPER COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY RESERVES A 20' UTILITY
EASEMENT CENTERED ALONG ALL WATER MAINS, HYDRANTS &
SUPPLY LINES.

A 10' DRAINAGE EASEMENT SHALL BE CENTERED ON ALL INTERIOR
PROPERTY LINES.

SEWAGE WASTEWATER DISPOSAL FOR LOTS SHOWN HEREON ARE
PROPOSED TO BE PERMITTED THROUGH INDIVIDUAL SEPTIC SYSTEM
PERMITS ISSUED TO INDIVIDUAL BUILDERS AT THE TIME OF
CONSTRUCTION BY THE JASPER COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT.
SOME LOTS MAY BE REQUIRED TO PROVIDE SEPTIC SITE PLANS IF
REQUESTED BY THE HEALTH DEPARTMENT PRIOR TO PERMITTING.
ALL LOTS ARE LIMITED TO 50% IMPERVIOUS SURFACE.

Owner / Developer
Primary Permittee:
Wade Homes, Inc.
491 N. Bethany Rd
McDonough, GA 30252

24 Hour Contact Person:
Wade Crawford
Phone: (770) 351-7260

 OWNER'S CERTIFICATION:

STATE OF GEORGIA, COUNTY OF JASPER
THE OWNER OF THE LAND SHOWN ON THIS PLAT AND WHOSE NAME
IS SUBSCRIBED HERETO, IN PERSON OR THROUGH A DULY
AUTHORIZED AGENT, CERTIFIES THAT THIS PLAT WAS MADE FROM
AN ACTUAL SURVEY AND THAT ALL STATE, CITY, AND COUNTY TAXES
OR OTHER ASSESSMENTS NOW DUE ON THIS LAND HAVE BEEN PAID
IN FULL.

BY:__________________________________ DATE:____________
        WADE CRAWFORD, WADE HOMES, INC.

RIGHT-OF-WAY DEDICATION
STATE OF GEORGIA, COUNTY OF JASPER:
THE EXTENDED SECTION OF LLOYD STREET RIGHT-OF-WAY DEPICTED
HEREON IS DEDICATED TO JASPER COUNTY FOR PUBLIC USE.

___________________________________    DATE: ___________
WADE CRAWFORD, WADE HOMES, INC.

LAKEVIEW ESTATES
FINAL PLAT FOR 

UNDISTURBED
EASEMENT AREA
FOR LOTS 42-47

LAND LOT 191, DISTRICT 18
GEORGIA MILITIA DISTRICT 296

JASPER COUNTY, GEORGIA

Phase 2

PLANNING COMMISSION CERTIFICATION OF APPROVAL:

STATE OF GEORGIA, COUNTY OF JASPER
THIS  PLAT WAS APPROVED FOR RECORDING BY THE JASPER
COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION ON ____________________.

BY:_________________________________ DATE:____________
  

COUNTY COMMISSION CERTIFICATION OF APPROVAL:

STATE OF GEORGIA, COUNTY OF JASPER
THIS  PLAT WAS APPROVED FOR RECORDING BY THE JASPER
COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS ON ____________________.

BY:_________________________________ DATE:____________
  

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATION:

AS REQUIRED BY SUBSECTION (D) OF O.C.G.A. 15-6-67, THIS PLAT HAS BEEN BEEN PREPARED BY A LAND SURVEYOR.  THIS PLAT HAS BEEN APPROVED BY ALL APPLICABLE
LOCAL JURISDICTIONS THAT REQUIRE PRIOR APPROVAL FOR RECORDING THIS TYPE OF PLAT.  FOR ANY APPLICABLE LOCAL JURISDICTION THAT REQUIRES APPROVAL OF
THIS TYPE OF PLAT, THE NAMES OF THE INDIVIDUALS SIGNING OR APPROVING THIS PLAT, THE AGENCY OR OFFICE OF THAT INDIVIDUAL, AND THE DATE OF APPROVAL
ARE LISTED IN THE APPROVAL TABLE SHOWN.  FOR ANY APPLICABLE LOCAL JURISDICTION THAT DOES NOT REQUIRE APPROVAL OF THIS TYPE OF PLAT, THE NAME OF
SUCH LOCAL JURISDICTION AND THE NUMBER OF THE APPLICABLE ORDINANCE OR RESOLUTION PROVIDING THAT NO SUCH APPROVAL IS REQUIRED ARE LISTED IN THE
APPROVAL TABLE SHOWN HEREON. SUCH APPROVALS, AFFIRMATIONS, OR ORDINANCE OR RESOLUTION NUMBERS SHOULD BE CONFIRMED WITH THE APPROPRIATE
GOVERNMENTAL BODIES BY ANY PURCHASER OR USER OF THIS PLAT AS TO INTENDED USE OF ANY PARCEL. FURTHERMORE, THE UNDERSIGNED LAND SURVEYOR
CERTIFIES THAT THIS PLAT COMPLIES WITH THE MINIMUM TECHNICAL STANDARDS FOR PROPERTY SURVEYS IN GEORGIA AS SET FORTH IN THE RULES AND REGULATIONS
OF THE GEORGIA BOARD OF REGISTRATION FOR PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERS AND LAND SURVEYORS AND AS SET FORTH IN O.C.G.A. SECTION 15-6-67.

BY: _________________________________ DATE:____________
                  ROBERT O. JORDAN, RLS 2902

12/8/22

ADDRESS44

JANUARY 24, 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDISON BLUFF - PHASE 1 P.B. 11, p. 451 Zoned R1

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDISON BLUFF - PHASE 1 P.B. 11, p. 451 Zoned R1

AutoCAD SHX Text
S:\CIVIL\LAKEVIEW PHASE 2 - CRAWFORD\DWG\LAKEVIEW PHASE 2 FINAL PLAT R13.DWG  January 25, 2023  January 25, 2023January 25, 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
No. 2902

AutoCAD SHX Text
R 

AutoCAD SHX Text
E



 
 O-030623__ 

1 
Draft Ordinance Amendment 

P&Z 02/16/2023 
BOC 03/06/2023 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS FOR CHANGES  
IN THE AMENDMENT DOCUMENT ATTACHED 

Pg Section # Topic P&Z Board changes 
3-4 Section I Chapter 105, Article II., Sec. 105-28 is hereby 

amended by revising language within the 
definition of Setback and adding a subsection (3) 
to the definition of Subdivision. 

P&Z recommended 
approval with the 
following changes from 
the original draft 
document: Setback – 
update first sentence 
only; and Subdivision to 
update # (3) to read 
minor plat not minor 
subdivision.  

4 Section II Chapter 105, Article VI. Section 105-162 
subsection 3.C. General regulations is hereby 
repealed and replaced by deleting Zoning Districts 
R1, R2, & RL and adding Zoning District RES which 
combines Zoning Districts R1 & R2 into a single 
category. 

P&Z recommended 
approval with no 
changes. 

4-5 Section III Chapter 119 – Zoning, Sec. 119-48 Conventional 
zoning districts is hereby repealed and replaced by 
deleting rows shown as R1, R2, RL & VP and 
adding row shown as RES which combines Zoning 
Districts R1 & R2 into a single category. 

P&Z recommended 
approval with eliminating 
the word “Intensity” 
from the RES category. 

5-8 Section IV Chapter 119 – Zoning, Sec. 119-95 Relationship 
between land use and zoning districts is hereby 
amended by adding the following language that 
removes any reference to R1, R2, RL and V-P and 
adds RES which combines Zoning Districts R1 & R2 
into a single category to the Permitted Zoning 
Districts. 

P&Z recommended 
approval with no 
changes. 

8 Section V Chapter 119 – Zoning, Sec. 119-196 R-2 Single-
Family Residential District, Low Intensity is 
amended by deleting the existing language and 
adding the replacing language for a new Zoning 
District RES to Part II – Code of Ordinances, 
Chapter 119 – Zoning, Sec. 119-196. 

P&Z recommended 
approval with removing 
the words “may not be” 
with the word “are” and 
deleting the words “and 
sewer utilities”. 

9 Section VI Chapter 119 – Zoning, Sec. 119-197 R-1 Single-
Family Residential District, Medium Density and 
reserving that Section number. 

P&Z recommended 
approval with no changes. 

9-10 Section VII Chapter 119 – Zoning, Sec. 119-198 RL Residential 
Lake Districts and reserving that Section number. 

P&Z recommended 
approval with no changes. 



 
 O-030623__ 

2 
Draft Ordinance Amendment 

P&Z 02/16/2023 
BOC 03/06/2023 

 

10-11 Section VIII The Code of Ordinances of Jasper County, Georgia 
is hereby amended by deleting the entire language 
of Part II – Code of Ordinances, Chapter 119 – 
Zoning, Sec. 119-199 V-P Village Plan Mixed-Use 
Residential District and reserving that Section 
number. 

P&Z recommended 
approval with no 
changes. 

11-12 Section IX Chapter 119 – Zoning, Sec. 119-244 Development 
Standards is hereby repealed and replaced by 
deleting Zoning Districts Columns R1, R2, RL, & VP 
and adding Zoning District Column RES which 
combines Zoning Districts R1 & R2 into a single 
category. 

P&Z recommended 
approval with adding the 
word “/setback” after the 
words front yard. 

12-22 Section X Chapter 119 – Zoning, Sec. 119-269 Table of 
Permitted Uses is hereby repealed and replaced by 
deleting Zoning Districts Columns R1, R2, RL, & VP 
and adding Zoning District Column RES which 
combines Zoning Districts R1 & R2 into a single 
category. 

P&Z recommended 
approval with no 
changes. 

22-35 Section XI Repeal the entire language of Chapter 119 – 
Zoning, Division 6 V-P Village Plan Mixed Use 
District Development Standards including Sec. 
119-287 through Sec. 119-302 and reserving the 
Division number. 

P&Z recommended 
approval with no 
changes. 

35-37 Section XII Chapter 119 – Zoning, Sec. 119-347 Application of 
parking requirements, Subsection (i) is hereby 
amended by repealing the entire subsection and 
renumbering the rest of the subsection. 

P&Z recommended 
approval with no 
changes. 

37-39 Section XIII Chapter 119 – Zoning, Article VI. Off-Street Parking 
and Loading Requirements, Section 119-348 
Minimum requirements for off-street parking is 
hereby amended by deleting all references to V-P 
Village Plan. 

P&Z recommended 
approval with no 
changes. 

39 Section XIV Housekeeping administration N/A 

39 Section XV Housekeeping administration N/A 

40 Section XVI Execution of the document N/A 

 

*All changes are shown in RED font and P&Z Board’s suggested changes are highlighted in 

YELLOW.   

* The length of the document is due to entire sections or divisions being captured for 

reference. 

 



 
 O-030623__ 

3 
Draft Ordinance Amendment 

P&Z 02/16/2023 
BOC 03/06/2023 

 

  



 
 O-030623__ 

4 
Draft Ordinance Amendment 

P&Z 02/16/2023 
BOC 03/06/2023 

 

DRAFT ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 
COMBINING OF DISTRICTS 

 
AN ORDINANCE BY JASPER COUNTY, GEORGIA TO AMEND CHAPTER 105 DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS 
AND 119 ZONING BY ADOPTING LANGUAGE AS DELINEATED BELOW; TO PROVIDE FOR CODIFICATION; 
TO REPEAL CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; TO PROVIDE AN ADOPTION DATE; TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 
 

WHEREAS, the Jasper County, Georgia, hereinafter referred to as the (“County”) pursuant to 
Paragraph I, Section II, Article IX of the Constitution of the State of Georgia, known as the “Home Rule for 
Counties:, is authorized to adopt clearly reasonable ordinances, resolutions or regulations related to its 
property, affairs, and local government for which no provision has been made by general law and which 
are not inconsistent with the Constitution or any charter provision applicable thereto, and; 

 
WHEREAS, Jasper County, Georgia has determined it beneficial and necessary to have well-

functioning ordinances to promote and manage development in the County; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF JASPER COUNTY, 

GEORGIA THAT THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF JASPER COUNTY, GEORGIA HEREBY ORDAIN: 
 
RESOLVED AND APPROVED by the Board of Commissioners of Jasper County, Georgia, this ____ 

day of March, 2023. 
 

SECTION I 
 

The Code of Ordinances of Jasper County, Georgia, Part II – Code of Ordinances, Chapter 105, Article II., 
Sec. 105-28 is hereby amended by revising language within the definition of Setback and adding a 
subsection (3) to the definition of Subdivision as shown below: 
 

Setback means a minimum distance from the centerline of the right-of-way front property line, side 

property line, or rear property line, for any construction except septic systems, storm drainage 

structures, private drives, sidewalks, on grade-patios without foundations, fences, retaining walls, and 

cantilevered roof overhangs. No parking for non-residential uses shall be allowed within front setbacks. 

Measurement shall be perpendicular to the property line or centerline of the prescriptive easement. 

 

Subdivision. 
(1) The term "subdivision" means the division of a parcel of land that is a lot of record at the time of 

enactment of the ordinance from which this chapter is derived into three or more lots, building 
sites, or other divisions, at least one of which is smaller than five acres, for the purpose—whether 
immediate or future—of sale, legacy, or building development. This definition includes all of the 
following: 
a. All divisions of land involving a new street. 
b. All divisions of land involving a substantial change in existing streets. 



 
 O-030623__ 

5 
Draft Ordinance Amendment 

P&Z 02/16/2023 
BOC 03/06/2023 

 

c. Any resubdivision of land into three or more lots if any lot is smaller than five acres. 
(2) The term "subdivision" does not include the following: 

a. The combination or recombination of portions of previously platted lots where the total 
number of lots is not increased and the resultant lots are equal to the standards set 
forth in this chapter. 

b. The transfer of unsubdivided land or the transfer of a lot or parcel of land established by 
deed or plat recorded in the office of the clerk of the superior court of the county prior 
to the initial effective date of the ordinance from which this chapter is derived. 

c. The division of land among heirs by judicial decree. 
d. The division of land into parcels of five or more acres where no new road is involved. 

 

(3) All residential subdivisions, other than minor plats as defined, shall comply with the provisions 
indicated in Chapter 105 / Article VI. - Conservation Subdivisions. 

 

SECTION II 
 

The Code of Ordinances of Jasper County, Georgia, Part II – Code of Ordinances, Chapter 105, Article VI. 
Section 105-162 subsection 3.C. General regulations is hereby repealed and replaced by deleting Zoning 
Districts R1, R2, & RL and adding Zoning District RES which combines Zoning Districts R1 & R2 into a 
single category as shown in the following language:  
 

Section 105-162 - Conservation Subdivision Design 
 

3. General regulations.  
 

C.  Housing density determination. The housing density determination will be determined by 
subtracting all the roads and right-of-way, required exterior buffers, and all conservation areas, 
and meeting the minimum lot size for each new lot as shown in the chart below: 

 

Zoning District Agricultural RR R1 R2 RES RL 

Lot size by Zoning District 5 acres 3 acres 2 acres  1.2 acres  2 acres  2 acres 

Minimum Lot Size 

Allowed  3 acres 1.8 acres 1.2 acre 0.72 1.2 acre 1.2 acres 

 

SECTION III 
 

The Code of Ordinances of Jasper County, Georgia, Part II – Code of Ordinances, Chapter 119 – Zoning, 
Sec. 119-48 Conventional zoning districts is hereby repealed and replaced by deleting rows shown as 
R1, R2, RL & VP and adding row shown as RES which combines Zoning Districts R1 & R2 into a single 
category with the following language:  
 

ARTICLE IV. - DISTRICT REGULATIONS 
DIVISION 4. - DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS—ALL DISTRICTS 



 
 O-030623__ 

6 
Draft Ordinance Amendment 

P&Z 02/16/2023 
BOC 03/06/2023 

 

Sec. 119-48. - Conventional zoning districts.  
 

In order to carry out the intent and purpose of this chapter, the county is divided into the following 
zoning districts:  

Abbreviation  Name  
Density  

(Minimum Lot Size)  

AG  Agricultural  5 acres  

R-R  Rural Residential - Low Density  3 acres  

R1 Single-Family Residential -  2 acres 

R2 Single-Family Residential -  2 acres 

RES Single-Family Residential - Intensity  2 acres  
 

RL Residential Lake - Low Density  2 acres 

V-P  Village Plan - Mixed-Use Residential  4,000 sq. ft.**  

O-I  Office-Institutional  1.2 acres/10,000 sq. ft.**  

C-1  Neighborhood Commercial  1.2 acres/5,000 sq. ft.**  

C-2  General Commercial  1.2 acres  

M  Manufacturing  1.2 acres  

   

*=With public water or sewer as approved by the county health department  
**=Must have public water and sewers  

 

SECTION IV 
 

The Code of Ordinances of Jasper County, Georgia, Part II – Code of Ordinances, Chapter 119 – Zoning, 
Sec. 119-95 Relationship between land use and zoning districts is hereby amended by adding the 
following language that removes any reference to R1, R2, RL and V-P and adds RES which combines 
Zoning Districts R1 & R2 into a single category to the Permitted Zoning Districts as shown below:  
 

Sec. 119-95. - Relationship between land use and zoning districts.  

The land use districts established by the comprehensive land use plan shall be implemented by the 
appropriate zoning districts assigned to each category. The zoning districts that are permitted within each 
land use district are restricted to the following:  

Land Use  

District  
Description  

Permitted Zoning 

Districts  

Parks/Recreation/Conservation  This category is for land dedicated to passive or 

active recreational uses. These areas may be 
All zones  



 
 O-030623__ 

7 
Draft Ordinance Amendment 

P&Z 02/16/2023 
BOC 03/06/2023 

 

either publicly or privately owned and include, 

but are not limited to, playgrounds, public 

parks, nature preserves, wildlife management 

areas, national forests, golf courses, and 

recreation centers.  

Agricultural, Forestry, Fishing, 

and Hunting  

Defined as lands in a natural, agricultural, or 

rural character throughout the planning 

horizon. Generally refers to areas lacking the 

infrastructure necessary to accommodate 

suburban growth. Actual uses may include, but 

are not limited to: farming, raising of livestock, 

timber production and harvesting, or any other 

use compatible with the surrounding 

environment.  

AG Agriculture  

Education, Public 

Administration, Health Care, and 

Other Institutions  

Includes certain state, federal or local 

government or institutional land uses, including 

but not limited to city halls and government 

building complexes, police, fire and emergency 

medical services stations, libraries, prisons, 

post offices, schools, military installations 

colleges, churches, cemeteries, and hospitals. 

Areas designated as public/institutional reflect 

the current use. Such future developments are 

likely to occur within proximity to highly 

populated areas and should be accommodated 

within residential districts where appropriate.  

O-I Office-

Institutional; V-P 

Village Plan; C-1 

Neighborhood 

Commercial  

Commercial  

Larger scale commercial development that is 

more oriented to the automobile traveler and 

requires major road access and higher visibility. 

Developed at higher intensities and requires 

access to supportive infrastructure.  

C-2 General 

Commercial; O-I 

Office-Institutional  

Neighborhood Activity Center  

Smaller-scale commercial development that 

should be compatible with surrounding land 

uses. Designed to provide limited convenience 

shopping and services only for surrounding 

residential areas. Need to be located at 

intersections of collector roads, or higher 

functional class, within close proximity to 

V-P Village Plan; C-

1 Neighborhood 

Commercial; O-I 

Office-Institutional  



 
 O-030623__ 

8 
Draft Ordinance Amendment 

P&Z 02/16/2023 
BOC 03/06/2023 

 

populated residential areas. Less reliant on 

automobile traffic for customers; may be 

internally linked with sidewalk networks.  

Industrial Workplace  

Includes both light and heavy industrial uses. 

Light industrial includes, warehousing and 

distribution, trucking, and small-scale 

manufacturing. Heavy industrial is generally 

defined as manufacturing that converts raw 

materials to finished products, storage of bulk 

materials, natural resource extraction, or any 

other process that could produce high levels of 

noise, dust, smoke, odors, or other emissions. 

Heavy industrial uses have adverse impacts on 

surrounding areas and should be isolated as 

much as possible within proximity to the 

required community facilities.  

M Manufacturing; 

C-2 General 

Commercial  

Community Activity Center  

Area providing a mixture of uses and 

developed in a traditional neighborhood 

fashion. Community Centers offer a wide 

variety of employment opportunities in retail, 

service, office and professional sectors. Various 

housing opportunities may be provided within 

planned developments as well as parks, green 

space, and other recreation areas. Must be 

served by supportive infrastructure and have 

access to major transportation thoroughfares.  

V-P Village Plan; C-

1 Neighborhood 

Commercial; O-I 

Office-Institutional  

Residential Growth  

Areas capable of developing as residential 

neighborhoods. Higher densities may be 

allowed if supportive infrastructure is available. 

May be suitable for neighborhood level 

commercial uses if developed within the 

character and scale of the neighborhood. These 

areas are intended to accommodate 

recreation, education, and civic or religious 

land uses that support neighborhoods.  

R-R Rural 

Residential; R-2; R-

1;R-L Residential 

Lake;V-P and RES 

Transportation, Communication, 

Information, and Utilities  

This category includes such uses as power 

generation plants, radio towers, public transit 

stations, telephone switching stations, airports, 

All zones  



 
 O-030623__ 

9 
Draft Ordinance Amendment 

P&Z 02/16/2023 
BOC 03/06/2023 

 

and port facilities as well as all streets, 

highways, and railroads.  

Gateway Corridor  

The roadways with this designation are scenic 

byways. Development within the corridor 

should be in accordance with the design and 

landscaping requirements set forth in the 

Scenic Byways corridor management plan.  

Scenic Byway 

Overlay  

Ocmulgee River Riparian Zone  

The intent of this designation is to protect the 

river's water quality by preventing erosion, to 

provide corridors for wildlife habitat and 

movement and to preserve scenic views for 

property owners.  

AG  

 
SECTION V 

 

The Code of Ordinances of Jasper County, Georgia, Part II – Code of Ordinances, Chapter 119 – Zoning, 
Sec. 119-196 R-2 Single-Family Residential District, Low Intensity is amended by deleting the existing 
language and adding the replacing language for a new Zoning District RES to Part II – Code of Ordinances, 
Chapter 119 – Zoning, Sec. 119-196 as shown below:  
 

Sec. 119-196. - R-2 Single-Family Residential District, Low Intensity. 
 

The R-2 Single-Family Residential District is intended to provide for single-family residential 
development at low-intensity (not over one principal dwelling unit per two acres) along with such public 
buildings, schools, churches, recreational facilities and accessory uses as may be necessary to support 
such communities and are normally compatible with such surroundings. For all major subdivisions of 
land for residential purposes in this district, conservation design is required leaving large amounts of 
land as green space protected by conservation easement. The R-2 district is designed to accommodate 
development in areas not served by public water and sewer utilities. 
 
ARTICLE IV. - DISTRICT REGULATIONS 
DIVISION 4. - DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS—ALL DISTRICTS 
 

Sec. 119-196. - RES Single-Family Residential District 

The RES Single-Family Residential District is intended to provide for single-family residential development 
at low-intensity (not over one principal dwelling unit per two acres) along with such public buildings, 
schools, churches, recreational facilities and accessory uses as may be necessary to support such 
communities and are normally compatible with such surroundings. For all major subdivisions of land for 
residential purposes in this district, conservation design is required leaving large amounts of land as green 
space protected by conservation easement. The RES district is designed to accommodate development in 
areas that may not be are served by public water and sewer utilities. 
 



 
 O-030623__ 

10 
Draft Ordinance Amendment 

P&Z 02/16/2023 
BOC 03/06/2023 

 

SECTION VI 
 

The Code of Ordinances of Jasper County, Georgia is hereby amended by deleting the entire language 
of Part II – Code of Ordinances, Chapter 119 – Zoning, Sec. 119-197 R-1 Single-Family Residential District, 
Medium Density and reserving that Section number: 
 

Sec. 119-197. - R-1 Single-Family Residential District, Medium Density. 
 

The R-1 Single-Family Residential District is intended for single-family residential development at low-
density (not over one principal dwelling unit per 1.2 acres) along with such public buildings, schools, 
churches, recreational facilities and accessory uses as may be necessary to support such communities and 
that are normally compatible with such surroundings. For all major subdivisions of land for residential 
purposes in this district, conservation subdivision design is required leaving large amounts of land as green 
space protected by conservation easement. The R-1 district may be applied in areas not served by public 
water and sewer utilities at a density of one principal dwelling unit per 1.2 acres. This district is also 
applicable at a maximum density of one dwelling unit per 0.7 acre in areas only if public or private 
community water and sewer utilities are available to support such density 
 

Sec. 119-197 - Reserved 

SECTION VII 
 

The Code of Ordinances of Jasper County, Georgia is hereby amended by repealing the entire language 
of Part II – Code of Ordinances, Chapter 119 – Zoning, Sec. 119-198 RL Residential Lake Districts and 
reserving that Section number: 
 

Sec. 119-198. - RL Residential Lake Districts. 
 

(a) Purpose. The RL Residential Lake Districts are intended for single-family residential development at 
varying densities from one dwelling per 0.115 acre in RL-1, one dwelling per one-half acre in RL-2, to one 
dwelling per acre in the RL-3 district along with such public buildings, recreational facilities and accessory 
uses as may be necessary to support such communities and that is normally compatible with such 
surroundings. The RL districts are designed to accommodate development in areas adjoining Jackson Lake 
served by public or community water systems but may not be served by public sewer utilities. The district 
is intended to apply to existing lots and dwellings that may have been developed prior to adoption of 
county zoning and subdivision regulations in order to apply basic standards for protection of property 
values and to protect the public health, safety, and welfare while placing most of such properties in a 
conforming status with respect to zoning. The district is also intended for application only in areas 
adjacent and in close proximity to major bodies of water where both water and sewer utilities are installed 
and readily accessible. 
 

(b) Status of existing nonconforming lots and utilities in RL-1, RL-2, and RL-3 districts. Nonconforming lots 
existing on the date of adoption of the ordinance from which this chapter is derived shall not be required 
to have access to public sewer utilities unless such utilities are installed and readily accessible in a public 
street or easement adjoining any such lot. All lots created in any RL district after the date of adoption of 
the ordinance from which this chapter is derived shall have access to water and sewerage as approved by 
the county health department and all other applicable regulations. 
 



 
 O-030623__ 

11 
Draft Ordinance Amendment 

P&Z 02/16/2023 
BOC 03/06/2023 

 

(c) Residential Lake RL-1 High-Density Residential/Recreation District (RL-1). The RL-1 district provides 
areas for the higher intensity residential development including the development of second and vacation 
home properties in the county along the shoreline of Jackson Lake. This district is also intended to 
accommodate open space, convenience services, and community facilities that compliment higher density 
living and are appropriate for the recreational theme of lakeside living. 
 

(d) Residential Lake RL-2 Medium-Density Residential/Recreation District (RL-2). The RL-2 district is 
intended to provide opportunities for a cohesive mix of dwelling units to diversify the types of housing 
located in the vicinity of the Jackson Lake shoreline in the county while preserving the lake and its unique 
wildlife habitats, environment, and natural resources. Residential medium-density districts provide for a 
moderate intensity of use and should therefore serve as transitional areas between less intense uses such 
as low-density residential districts and higher intensity areas. 
 

(e) Residential Lake RL-3 Low-Density Residential/Recreation District (RL-3). The purpose of the RL-3 
district is to encourage the development of single-family residential neighborhoods, and certain uses 
allied to or customarily incidental to traditional residential developments while stressing the preservation 
of the natural beauty of the lakeshore line and surrounding land. This district is appropriately located in 
areas adjacent to Jackson Lake. 
 
Sec. 119-198 - Reserved 

SECTION VIII 
 

The Code of Ordinances of Jasper County, Georgia is hereby amended by deleting the entire language 
of Part II – Code of Ordinances, Chapter 119 – Zoning, Sec. 119-199 V-P Village Plan Mixed-Use 
Residential District and reserving that Section number. 
 
Sec. 119-199. - V-P Village Plan Mixed-Use Residential District.  

(a)  Purposes. The V-P Village Plan Mixed-Use Residential District is designed and intended to promote 
development of neighborhoods in the traditional pattern with a mixture of single-family detached 
dwellings at moderate density (up to seven units per acre) and attached or multifamily housing at 
greater density (up to 17 units per acre) along with such limited commercial buildings, public buildings, 
recreational facilities and accessory uses as may be necessary to support such a complete village 
community and that are normally compatible with such surroundings.  

(b)  The V-P district is intended to be applied only in areas identified in the comprehensive plan as 
neighborhood or community activity centers. All major subdivisions of land in this zoning district require 
use of the conservation subdivision design method, leaving a portion of the community as natural 
green space protected by conservation easement. In return for the relatively intense density permitted 
in this district, all development is intended to be subject to the county architectural standards to protect 
and promote the public health, safety, and welfare.  

(1)  To create a distinct physical settlement surrounded by protected green space used for 
agriculture, silviculture, recreation, and environmental protection purposes.  

(2)  To develop settlements of modest size and scale that accommodate and promote pedestrian 
travel rather than motor vehicle trips.  

(3)  To promote design that results in residentially scaled buildings fronting on, and aligned with, 
streets.  



 
 O-030623__ 

12 
Draft Ordinance Amendment 

P&Z 02/16/2023 
BOC 03/06/2023 

 

(4)  To encourage the inclusion of a diversity of household types, age groups, and income levels in 
the county.  

(5)  To promote traditional village building and site development patterns with an interconnected and 
generally rectilinear pattern of streets, alleys, and blocks, providing for a balanced mix of 
pedestrians and automobiles, as typically exists in neighborhoods and towns as shown in the 
county architectural design guidelines.  

(6)  To encourage creation of a functionally diverse, but visually unified, community focused on a 
central square or green.  

(7)  To promote use of neighborhood greens, landscaped streets, boulevards, parkways, and "single-
loaded" streets woven into street and block patterns in order to provide neighborhood identity and 
space for social activity, parks, and visual enjoyment.  

(8)  To provide buildings for common or institutional purposes, such as civic or religious assembly, 
that act as visual landmarks and symbols of identity.  

(9)  To promote the location of dwellings, shops, and workplaces in close proximity to each other, 
the scale of which accommodates and promotes pedestrian travel for trips within the community.  

(10)  To preserve green space, scenic vistas, agricultural lands, and natural areas.  

(11)  To promote environmentally sustainable building and development practices.  

 

Sec. 119-199 - Reserved 
 

SECTION IX 
 

The Code of Ordinances of Jasper County, Georgia, Part II – Code of Ordinances, Chapter 119 – Zoning, 
Sec. 119-244 Development Standards is hereby repealed and replaced by deleting Zoning Districts 
Columns R1, R2, RL, & VP and adding Zoning District Column RES which combines Zoning Districts R1 & 
R2 into a single category as shown in the following language: 
 
 DIVISION 4. - DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS—ALL DISTRICTS  

Sec. 119-244. - Development standards—Agriculture and residential districts.  

Item  AG  R-R  R-2  R-1  RES RL  V-P  

Minimum heated floor area 

per dwelling unit  

1,200 

sf  

1,200 

sf  

1,300 

sf  

1,800 

sf  

1,800 

sf 

1,800 

sf  
750 sf  

Minimum lot area without 

water or sewer  

5 

acres  

3 

acres  

1.2 

acres  

2 

acres  

2 

acres 

2 

acres  
NA  

Minimum lot area with 

public/private water  

5 

acres  

3 

acres  

1.2 

acres  

2 

acres  

2 

acres 

2 

acres  
NA  



 
 O-030623__ 

13 
Draft Ordinance Amendment 

P&Z 02/16/2023 
BOC 03/06/2023 

 

Minimum lot area with 

public/private water and 

sewer  

5 

acres  

3 

acres  

1.2 

acres  

2 

acres  

2 

acres 
2 

acres  
4,000 sf  

Minimum lot width  
200 

ft.  

200 

ft.  

125 

ft.  

125 

ft.  

125 

ft. 

125 

ft.  

See section 

119-295  

Minimum road frontage  
200 

ft.  

200 

ft.  

125 

ft.  

125 

ft.  

125 

ft. 

125 

ft.  

See section 

119-295  

Minimum front yard/setback 

arterial road  
80 ft.  80 ft.  80 ft.  80 ft.  

80 ft. 
80 ft.  80 ft.  

Minimum front yard/setback 

major collector  
80 ft.  80 ft.  80 ft.  80 ft.  

80 ft. 
80 ft.  

10 ft. store;  

30 ft. others  

Minimum front yard/setback 

minor collector  
30 ft.  30 ft.  30 ft.  30 ft.  

30 ft. 
30 ft.  

0 ft. store;  

20 ft. other  

Minimum front yard/setback 

local roads  
30 ft.  30 ft.  30 ft.  30 ft.  

30 ft. 
30 ft.  

0 ft. store;  

20 ft. other  

Minimum side yard  30 ft.  30 ft.  30 ft.  30 ft.  30 ft. 30 ft.  0 or 10 ft.  

Minimum rear yard  50 ft.  50 ft.  30 ft.  30 ft.  
30 ft. 30 

ft.*  
30 ft.  

Compliance with 

architectural standards 

required?  

No  No  No  No  

No 

No  No  

       ;le=2;NA — Not allowed  
;le=2;*Rear yards that adjoin Jackson Lake will be measured from Georgia Power easement: 525 

feet sea level plus 50 feet  
;le=2;**Water and sewage must meet approval of the county health department  

 

SECTION X 
 

The Code of Ordinances of Jasper County, Georgia, Part II – Code of Ordinances, Chapter 119 – Zoning, 
Sec. 119-269 Table of Permitted Uses is hereby repealed and replaced by deleting Zoning Districts 
Columns R1, R2, RL, & VP and adding Zoning District Column RES which combines Zoning Districts R1 & 
R2 into a single category as shown in the following language:  
 
 



 
 O-030623__ 

14 
Draft Ordinance Amendment 

P&Z 02/16/2023 
BOC 03/06/2023 

 

DIVISION 5. - TABLE OF PERMITTED USES BY ZONING DISTRICT  
Sec. 119-269. - Table of permitted uses.  

The table of permitted uses should be read in close conjunction with the definitions of terms set forth 
in section 119-2 and the other interpretive provisions set forth in this chapter. All uses not shown as a 
permitted use or a special use within each district by this section are specifically prohibited in that district. 
All uses shown as an accessory use are specifically permitted only as an accessory to some other lawful 
principal use. However, not all accessory uses are indicated and the absence of a designation as an 
accessory use does not necessarily prohibit it.  

X = Permitted Use; S = Special Use Permit Required; A = Accessory Use Only  

Use  AG  R-R  R-1  R-2  RES  RL  V-P  O-I  C-1  C-2  M  

Agriculture  X  X          X  

Airport, heliport  S           S  

Ambulance/emergency service  S            

Animal hospital  X          S  X  

Animal shelter  X  X           

Antique shop  A       X   X  X   

Appliance, hardware store        X    X   

Armory  S        S    X  

Art studio  A       X  X  X  X   

Auto auctions           S   

Auto parts (new) and tires           X   

Auto repair and body work 

garage  
          X  

Auto sales and service           X   

Bakery sales  A       X   X  X   

Baking establishment  A       X     X  



 
 O-030623__ 

15 
Draft Ordinance Amendment 

P&Z 02/16/2023 
BOC 03/06/2023 

 

Banks/financial institutions        X    X   

Bar (separate from restaurant) 

2,000 sf maximum floor area  
      S    X   

Bar, brew pub        X   X  X   

Beer and wine sales        X   X  X   

Bicycle shop (sales and repair)        X   X  X   

Boardinghouse/roominghouse        X  X     

Bottling/canning plant        X     X  

Bowling alley           X   

Building supply yard (lumber, 

electric, plumbing, etc.)  
          X  

Bus terminal, passenger           S   

Business or commercial school         X     

Cabinet shop  A          X  X  

Campgrounds or recreational 

vehicle park  
S          S   

Car wash        X    X   

Carnival, rodeo, tent revival, 

not to exceed 30 days  
S        S    X  

Carpet, rug sales and storage           X   

Cement/lime/gypsum/plaster 

paris mfg.  
          S  

Cemetery  S        X  S  S   



 
 O-030623__ 

16 
Draft Ordinance Amendment 

P&Z 02/16/2023 
BOC 03/06/2023 

 

Central mixing plant — 

Cement, mortar, plaster, 

asphalt  
          S  

Ceramic products mfg. 

(electrical kiln)  
          S  

Chemical storage and 

manufacturing  
          X  

Church, religious institution  S  X  X  X  X  X  X  X  X  X   

Clinic, public or private        X  X     

Clothing/dry goods store        X   X  X   

Club or lodge  X  X  X  X  X  X  X  X   X   

Cold storage/ice plant/freezer 

locker  
          X  

Colleges or universities  S        X     

Commercial livestock 

processing  
          S  

Commercial silo/grain elevator            S  

Concrete, cement, clay 

products mfg.  
          S  

Cosmetic and pharmaceutical 

products mfg.  
          X  

Crematory  S           S  

Dairy plant, ice cream mfg.            X  

Dance studio        X  X  X  X   



 
 O-030623__ 

17 
Draft Ordinance Amendment 

P&Z 02/16/2023 
BOC 03/06/2023 

 

Day care 

center/kindergarten/nursery 

school  
S  S      X  X     

Day care, home  X  X   X  X  X      

Department store           X   

Distribution of products or 

merchandise  
          X  

Drive-in theater             

Drugstore        X  X  X  X   

Dry cleaning or laundering 

plant  
          X  

Dwelling, condominium        X      

Dwelling, multifamily 

apartment  
      X      

Dwelling, single-family 

attached  
      X      

Dwelling, single-family 

detached  
X  X  X  X  X  X  X      

Dwelling, two-family (duplex)        X      

Education or training facility         X   X  X  

Electric repair (commercial)          X  X  X  

Electronic mfg. and assembly 

plant  
          X  

Experimental laboratory         S    S  

Fabricating shop (wood, 

upholstery, sheet metal)  
        X  X  X  



 
 O-030623__ 

18 
Draft Ordinance Amendment 

P&Z 02/16/2023 
BOC 03/06/2023 

 

Farm (with unlimited livestock)  X            

Farm, maximum of two head of 

livestock per acre  
 X           

Farmers market        X   X  X   

Feed/grain/fertilizer storage  X           S  

Feed, seed, fertilizer, retail           X  X  

Florist        X   X  X   

Food processing plant            S  

Foundry or forging plant            S  

Freight express office        X   S  X   

Funeral home          X  X   

Furniture store        X   X  X   

Furniture upholstery shop          X  X   

Game room, arcade        X    X   

Gasoline service station        X   X  X   

Go-cart/motorbike track            X  

Golf course  S  S  S  S  S  S       

Golf course, miniature          X  X   

Greenhouse, commercial  X          X   

Guest house, 750 sf maximum  A  A           

Gunsmith          X  X   

Health/athletic club        X    X   



 
 O-030623__ 

19 
Draft Ordinance Amendment 

P&Z 02/16/2023 
BOC 03/06/2023 

 

Heavy agricultural equip. sales 

and repair  
         X  X  

Home occupation  A  A  A  A  A  A  A      

Homeowners' recreation area  X  X  X  X  X  X  X      

Horseback riding facility, 

commercial  
S            

Hospital         X     

Hotel         X   X   

Ice, mfg. and sales            X  

Industrialized home  X  X  X  X  X  X  X      

Intermediate care home        X  X     

Jewelry store        X   X  X   

Junkyard            S  

Kennel, commercial  S          S   

Liquor store             

Live bait sales  X  A        X  X   

Local/state/fed. government 

bldg.  
X  X  X  X  X  X  X  X  X  X  X  

Locksmith        X   X  X   

Machine shop           X  X  

Manufactured home—Class A  X  X           

Manufactured home—Class A, 

with New Urban Guild Seal of 

Approval  
X  X           



 
 O-030623__ 

20 
Draft Ordinance Amendment 

P&Z 02/16/2023 
BOC 03/06/2023 

 

Manufactured home—

temporary construction office  
X  X  X  X  X  X  X      

Manufactured home sales and 

display  
         X  X  

Manufacturing            X  

Mini storage warehouse            X  

Motion picture or other theater        X  X  X  X   

Motorcycle shop, sales and 

repair  
         X   

Museum        X  X  X  X   

Music teaching studio        X  X  X  X   

Newspaper or printing plant            X  

Nursing home         X     

Off-street parking lot/garage        X    X  X  

Office equipment sales/service           X  X  

Pawnshop           X   

Pers. service (beauty, shoe 

repair, laundry drop, etc.)  
        X  X   

Personal care home, 

congregate  
       X     

Personal care home, family  X  X      X  X     

Personal care home, group        X  X     

Pest control           X  X  



 
 O-030623__ 

21 
Draft Ordinance Amendment 

P&Z 02/16/2023 
BOC 03/06/2023 

 

Petroleum refinery or bulk 

storage distributor  
          S  

Photography studio        X   X  X   

Planing mill or sawmill  X           S  

Planned apartment community        X      

Planned manufactured home 

community  
      X      

Poultry houses, hog parlors, 

feed lots  
X           S  

Printing, copying shop        X    X   

Professional office bldg.        X  X   X   

Public park or recreation area  X  X  X  X  X  X  X  X     

Public storage garage            X  

Radio/TV station           X   

Railroad passenger station         S   S  X  

Railroad spur tracks            X  

Railroad yard            X  

Recycling center            S  

Research lab, commercial            X  

Restaurant        X   X  X   

Restaurant, delicatessen or 

sandwich shop  
      X  A  X  X   

Restaurant, drive-in           X   



 
 O-030623__ 

22 
Draft Ordinance Amendment 

P&Z 02/16/2023 
BOC 03/06/2023 

 

Retail food stores        X   X  X   

Roadside stand  X       X      

Rock/sand/gravel 

(distribution/storage)  
          S  

Sanitary landfill            S  

School, private - elementary, 

middle, high  
S  S  S  S  S   S  X     

Sign painting and fabricating 

shop  
      S    X  X  

Skating rink (roller, ice)           X   

Small motor repair shops           X   

Souvenir/curio shop        X   X  X   

Specialty shop (gift, jewelry, 

etc.)  
      X  A  X  X   

Storage tank (above ground) 

gas  
          S  

Storage tanks (agricultural, 

nonflammable)  
X           S  

Tailor        X  A  X  X   

Taxi station           X   

Taxidermist           X   

Textile mfg. plant            X  

Trailer, or truck rental           X   

Transmission tower  S           S  



 
 O-030623__ 

23 
Draft Ordinance Amendment 

P&Z 02/16/2023 
BOC 03/06/2023 

 

Truck terminal            X  

Utility substation  X  X  X X  X  X  X  X  X  X  X  

Warehousing, not premises 

sales  
          X  

Washateria        X   X  X   

Welding shop            X  

SECTION XI 

The Code of Ordinances of Jasper County, Georgia is hereby amended by repealing the entire language 
of Part II – Code of Ordinances, Chapter 119 – Zoning, Division 6 V-P Village Plan Mixed Use District 
Development Standards including Sec. 119-287 through Sec. 119-302 and reserving the Division number 
as shown below: 
 
DIVISION 6. - V-P VILLAGE PLAN MIXED-USE DISTRICT DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS  

Sec. 119-287. - Applicability.  

The V-P zoning district is applicable only within community activity centers or neighborhood activity 
centers designated on the map entitled "Future Land Use — 2025 Jasper County, Georgia," contained in 
the comprehensive plan. The standards of this zoning district are applicable only in areas served either by 
municipal sewer systems or by community sewer systems that are approved by the county health 
department.  

Sec. 119-288. - Standards applicable to the village as a whole.  

(a)  Villages are intended to provide for a range of complementary uses and may consist of up to four 
areas: storefront area, central residential area, village residential area, and village green space area.  

(b)  All villages shall contain both a village residential area and a village green space area.  

(c)  In villages containing more than 100 dwelling units, at least 20 percent of the dwelling units shall be 
other than single-family detached.  

(d)  In villages containing more than 100 dwelling units, a storefront area suitable in size shall be reserved.  

(e)  A minimum of 20 percent of the total tract area shall be permanently protected as green space.  

(f)  All villages shall reserve and develop land uses in the following proportions:  

Land Use Area  Minimum  Maximum  

Storefront area  0%  10%*  

Central residential  0%  40%  



 
 O-030623__ 

24 
Draft Ordinance Amendment 

P&Z 02/16/2023 
BOC 03/06/2023 

 

Village residential  40%  80%  

Green space  20%  60%*Maximum allowed if incentives are invoked  

Sec. 119-289. - Storefront area.  

(a)  Purpose. The storefront area, which is optional, serves as the village core. All nonresidential uses 
shall be located within the storefront area. This area shall provide a variety of retail shops and services 
complemented by other compatible business, civic, institutional and upper-story residential uses in 
buildings consistent in scale with a small downtown or central market place in the community. Upper-
story dwelling units above nonresidential uses are specifically encouraged. Residential uses on the 
first-floor are prohibited.  

(b)  Maximum size. The storefront area, including parking, shall be limited to six percent of the total tract 
area of the entire village. This limit may be increased as follows:  

(1)  Commercial buildings and their associated parking areas may occupy up to eight percent of the 
total tract area if they include second-story non-retail uses above at least 50 percent of the 
commercial building coverage.  

(2)  Commercial buildings and their associated parking areas may occupy up to ten percent of the 
total tract area if they include second-story residential units, provided that at least half of the new 
commercial building coverage is two stories, and at least 50 percent of the second-story space is 
designed for residential uses.  

(c)  Uses permitted in the storefront area. The following uses are permitted by right:  

(1)  Retail uses, professional offices and personal or professional services occupying 2,400 square 
feet or less in 1½-story buildings, and up to 4,800 square feet in buildings of two or more stories.  

(2)  Civic and institutional uses such as schools, libraries, and places of worship.  

(3)  Governmental or public uses, excluding storage of materials, trucking or repair facilities, private 
or municipal sanitary landfills.  

(4)  Bed-and-breakfast establishments and inns limited to ten rooms or units for guests.  

(5)  Day care centers.  

(6)  Upper-story dwelling units in addition to the base residential density otherwise permitted, 
provided the total number of dwelling units in a development shall not be increased by more than 
ten dwelling units or ten percent, whichever is greater. Shared parking arrangements shall be 
permitted.  

(7)  Home occupations.  

(8)  Live/work units for artisans, professionals, and service providers.  

(9)  Gasoline stations along major minor arterial and collector roads.  

(10)  Active recreation.  

(11)  Farmers market.  

(12)  Parking structures.  

Sec. 119-290. - Central residential area.  



 
 O-030623__ 

25 
Draft Ordinance Amendment 

P&Z 02/16/2023 
BOC 03/06/2023 

 

(a)  Purpose. The central residential area, which is optional, provides a wide variety of housing types and 
greater density in close proximity to the storefront area when the village contains commercial uses.  

(b)  Uses permitted in the central residential area. The following uses are permitted by right:  

(1)  Single-family detached dwellings.  

(2)  Two-family, three-family, four-family, and five-family dwellings.  

(3)  Multifamily apartment dwellings limited to 12 dwellings in a single building.  

(4)  Industrialized homes meeting the architectural design standards.  

(5)  Accessory dwelling units that are architecturally integrated with the primary structure or 
accessory buildings in accordance with this chapter.  

(6)  Home occupations.  

(7)  Uses accessory to residential uses.  

(c)  Mix of residential uses. The central residential area shall consist of at least two dwelling types, with a 
maximum of 40 percent single-family detached units.  

Sec. 119-291. - Village residential area.  

(a)  Purpose. The village residential area, required in all villages, is located outside the central residential 
area and contains primarily single-family detached dwelling units, but may include some two, three, 
four or five-family units, and accessory dwelling units.  

(b)  Uses permitted in the village residential area. The following uses are permitted by right:  

(1)  Single-family detached dwellings.  

(2)  Two- through five-family dwellings.  

(3)  Accessory dwelling units that are architecturally integrated with the primary structure or 
accessory buildings in accordance with this chapter.  

(4)  Home occupations.  

(5)  Uses accessory to residential uses.  

(c)  Mix of residential uses. Village residential areas shall consist of at least 80 percent single-family 
detached units, except that village developments containing fewer than 100 dwelling units may consist 
of 100 percent single-family detached units.  

Sec. 119-292. - Village green space area.  

(a)  Purpose. The village green space area consists of all the green space required in the village. Green 
space shall consist of primary conservation areas and secondary conservation areas. At least 15 
percent of the minimum required green space shall consist of multiple greens, commons, squares, or 
parks.  

(b)  Uses permitted in the village green space area. The following uses are permitted by right:  

(1)  Conservation of open land in its or natural or managed state (for example, woodland, fallow field, 
or meadow).  

(2)  Agricultural and horticultural uses, including raising crops or livestock, wholesale nurseries, 
associated buildings, excluding residences needed to support an active, viable agricultural or 
horticultural operation. Specifically excluded are commercial livestock operations involving swine, 
poultry, mink, and other animals likely to produce highly offensive odors.  

(3)  Pastureland for horses and other grazing livestock used solely for recreational purposes. 
Equestrian facilities, including commercial facilities, shall be permitted but may not consume more 



 
 O-030623__ 

26 
Draft Ordinance Amendment 

P&Z 02/16/2023 
BOC 03/06/2023 

 

than half of the minimum required green space. Indoor or outdoor riding arenas are permitted, 
excluding seating areas and facilities for audiences. Rodeo facilities are specifically excluded.  

(4)  Silviculture, in keeping with established standards for selective harvesting and sustained yield 
forestry.  

(5)  Neighborhood green space uses such as village greens, commons, picnic areas, community 
gardens, trails, and similar low-impact passive recreational uses specifically excluding motorized 
off-road vehicles, rifle ranges, and other uses similar in character and potential impact as 
determined by the county commission.  

(6)  Active noncommercial recreation areas, such as playing fields, playgrounds, courts, and 
bikeways, provided such areas do not consume more than half of the minimum required green 
space or ten acres, whichever is less. Parking facilities for the same shall also be permitted 
provided they shall not be included in the required green space.  

(7)  Water supply facilities, sewage disposal systems, and stormwater infiltration areas provided that 
such areas do not occupy more than 25 percent of the required green space. Excluded from this 
permission are mounded septic systems, storage lagoons, and detention and retention basins.  

(8)  Easements for drainage, access, sewer or water lines, or other public purposes.  

(9)  Underground utility rights-of-way.  

(10)  Aboveground utility and street rights-of-way may traverse, but shall not count toward the 
minimum required area of green space.  

(11)  Single-family detached dwellings and their accessory units located on conservancy lots of at 
least ten acres in area.  

(12)  Existing impoundments of water and all state waters may satisfy up to 25 percent of the required 
green space.  

Sec. 119-293. - Village size and separation.  

Village plan districts shall be located in conformity with the comprehensive plan in areas designated 
as community activity centers or neighborhood activity centers designated on the map entitled "Future 
Land Use — 2025 Jasper County, Georgia," as amended. The land area of any single village plan district 
shall not exceed 250 acres and the minimum size shall not be less than five acres.  

Sec. 119-294. - Density and green space determination.  

(a)  Residential density. The maximum number of dwelling units to be permitted shall be the sum of the 
following components:  

Determined in  

Section Number  
Component  No. of Units  

119-294(b)  Standard density (2 dwelling units per acre)   

119-294(c)  Density bonuses to further certain public objectives   

   a. Public use of green space   

 
  b. Endowment for green space main-  

  tenance  
 



 
 O-030623__ 

27 
Draft Ordinance Amendment 

P&Z 02/16/2023 
BOC 03/06/2023 

 

   c. Affordable housing development   

   d. LEED certification   

119-289  Storefront area dwelling units constructed above commercial uses   

 Maximum number of permitted dwelling units =   

 (b)  Determination of standard density. Determination of the maximum number of permitted 

dwelling units shall be based on the total tract area of the site. Standard density shall equal the 

total tract area times the density factor. The standard residential density factor for V-P zone shall 

be two dwelling units per acre.  

Formula: standard density = Total Tract Area × Density Factor  

Total Tract Area _______ acres  

Density Factor × 2 units per acre  

Standard Density = ________ dwelling units  

(c)  Density bonuses to further certain public objectives. Village residential density may be increased 
beyond standard density when certain public objectives pertaining to public land dedication, and 
conservation land endowments are achieved. The additional dwelling units shall be cumulative, 
provided that the total additional number of dwelling units under this section shall not exceed 25 
percent of the standard density.  

(1)  Public use of green space. A density increase may be granted at the discretion of the county 
commission where the proposal provides for the dedication of green space for public use 
(including active and passive recreation areas, municipal sanitary sewerage land application 
systems, municipal buildings, school sites, etc.) in accordance with the following standards:  

a.  The increase in density shall be computed on the basis of one dwelling unit per five acres of 
natural resource land including, but not limited to: woodlands, pastures, conservation 
meadows, farm fields; or per one acre of land improved for active recreation (such as ball 
fields) or per half-mile of trail that becomes publicly accessible. The density shall not exceed 
ten percent increase over the standard density.  

b.  The decision whether to accept an applicant's offer to dedicate land to public usage within a 
proposed village development shall be at the discretion of the county commission, which 
shall be guided by the recommendations contained in the green space/recreation element 
of the comprehensive plan.  

(2)  Endowment for green space maintenance.  

a.  A density increase may be granted at the discretion of the county commission when green 
space is to be donated to a land trust, property owners association, or home owners 
association up to a maximum of ten percent over standard density, to generate additional 
income to the recipient for the sole purpose of endowing a permanent fund to offset 
continuing costs of maintaining the green space, including costs associated with active or 
passive recreation facilities. Spending from this fund shall be restricted to expenditure of 
interest so that the principal may be preserved. The estimate of maintenance costs shall be 
prepared by an agency, firm, or organization acceptable to the county commission, and with 



 
 O-030623__ 

28 
Draft Ordinance Amendment 

P&Z 02/16/2023 
BOC 03/06/2023 

 

experience in managing green space and recreational facilities. The density shall not exceed 
a maximum ten percent increase over the standard density. In the event that the agency 
designated to manage the maintenance of the green space fails within its duties, the county 
will designate the area as a special tax district, to collect revenues to manage and maintain 
the green space.  

b.  Because additional dwellings, beyond the maximum that would ordinarily be permitted, may 
reasonably be considered to be net of development costs and represent true profit, 75 
percent of the net selling price of the endowment lots shall be donated by the applicant to 
the green space maintenance endowment fund for maintenance of the lands to be conserved 
within the subdivision. The developer shall transfer this fund to the designated entity with 
ownership and maintenance responsibilities. When estimating the projected maintenance 
costs of the green space, any area that is not accessible to the subdivision residents for their 
common enjoyment shall not be included in these calculations. Such inaccessible lands shall 
include areas designated on the final plan as "country properties" and other non-common 
acreage.  

(3)  Affordable housing development. A density increase may be granted where the proposal 
provides housing opportunities for low- or moderate-income households. For each affordable 
housing unit, one additional building lot or dwelling unit shall be permitted, up to a maximum 15 
percent increase over the standard density.  

(4)  LEED certification. A density increase may be granted where the proposal provides for houses, 
commercial or mixed-use buildings meeting LEED Green Building certification up to a maximum 
of 20 percent increase over the standard density. The increased density may be expressed in 
terms of the number residential dwelling units permitted or in additional commercial floor area if 
LEED standards are met for commercial mixed-use buildings. The increases considered shall be 
as follows:  

LEED Level Achieved  Density Bonus  

Certification  5%  

Silver  10%  

Gold  15%  

Platinum  20%  

(5)  Implementation. For each of the public purposes described in this section, dwellings 

resulting from density bonuses may be accommodated by reducing the amount of required green 

space acreage by up to ten percent, reducing the minimum lot area requirements by up to 20 

percent, or by a combination of these approaches, provided that county commission is satisfied 

that the public purpose objectives are being achieved.  

(d)  Minimum required green space. The minimum amount of green space required shall equal 50 percent 
of total tract area except as otherwise provided in this chapter. The green space shall be composed of 
all constrained lands within the total tract area and any additional lands necessary to reach 50 percent 
of the total tract area according to the following formula:  

Formula: Required Green Space = 50 percent of Total Tract Area  



 
 O-030623__ 

29 
Draft Ordinance Amendment 

P&Z 02/16/2023 
BOC 03/06/2023 

 

(50% × Total Tract Area)  

— All Constrained Land  

= ___________ Additional Conservation land required  

Sec. 119-295. - Lot area and dimensional standards table.  

Proposed lots and buildings in the central residential, village residential and storefront areas shall 
meet the area and dimensional standards in the following table:  

 Lot Area  Lot Width  Setbacks  

     Front Yard    

 Min.  Max.  
At Street 

Line 1  

At Building 

Line  
Min.  Max.  

Rear  

Yard  

Min.  

Side  

Yard  

Min. 
2  

Central Residential Area  

Single-family detached 

dwelling  
5,500 sf   20 ft.  30 ft.      

with accessory dwelling  8,500 sf   20 ft.  30 ft.      

Two- to four-family 

dwellings  
3,630 

sf/du  

4,000 

sf/du  
      

Multifamily dwellings  
3,630 

sf/du  

4,000 

sf/du  
      

Principal dwelling      -0-  
20 ft. 

3  
20 ft.  5 ft.  

Accessory building        
10 ft. 

4  
5 ft.  

Front loading garage      35 ft.     

Village Residential Area  

Single-family detached 

dwelling  
5,500 sf         



 
 O-030623__ 

30 
Draft Ordinance Amendment 

P&Z 02/16/2023 
BOC 03/06/2023 

 

with accessory dwelling  8,500 sf         

Two- to four-family units  
2,500 

sf/du  

4,000 

sf/du  
30 ft.  30 ft.      

Principal dwelling      
12 ft. 

5  
 30 ft.  

Note 
6  

Open front porches and 

steps  
    6 ft.     

Screened front porches      10 ft.     

Front porches enclosed by 

windows  
    15 ft.     

Accessory building 

(excluding garages)  
      5 ft.  5 ft.  

Detached front loading 

garage  
    40 ft.     

Attached side loading 

garage  
    10 ft.     

Attached front loading 

garage  
    

10 ft. 
7  

   

Rear loading garage        10 ft.   

Storefront Area  

Principal building      -0-  
10 ft. 

2  
20 ft.  5 ft.  

Accessory building        5 ft. 3  5 ft.  

  

1 Residential lots shall have frontage on a street, rear lane or alley. Dwellings served by rear lanes or 
alleys may front directly onto parks or greens.  

2 Side yards may be modified in accordance with this chapter.  



 
 O-030623__ 

31 
Draft Ordinance Amendment 

P&Z 02/16/2023 
BOC 03/06/2023 

 

3 Not applicable to interior buildings in courtyard designs.  

4 From edge of pavement of alley.  

5 Dwellings on opposite sides of the street shall be located at least 70 feet and no more than 90 feet 
across from one another, except along boulevards and when buildings front onto greens, commons 
or other green space.  

6 Min. 20-foot building separation between principal buildings on adjacent lots.  

7 Behind the plane of the front facade of the principal building. 

Sec. 119-296. - Green space dimensional standards.  

(a)  Greens, commons, squares and parks.  

(1)  At least 15 percent of the minimum required green space shall consist of multiple greens, 
commons, squares or parks.  

(2)  Active recreation facilities located in greens, commons, squares or parks shall be set back a 
minimum of 100 feet from adjoining residential lot lines.  

(b)  Conservancy lots. In districts where the density is one dwelling unit per two acres or lower, required 
green space may, at the discretion of the county commission, take the form of conservancy lots 
provided that:  

(1)  The total required green space within the proposed village shall meet the requirements in this 
chapter.  

(2)  The area occupied by conservancy lots shall not exceed 80 percent of the total required green 
space.  

(3)  Conservancy lots shall have a minimum lot size of ten acres.  

(4)  Green space on conservancy lots shall not include buildings, other than those traditionally 
associated with greenway uses, such as barns, stables and other similar outbuildings.  

(5)  Country properties shall be protected from further subdivision through conservation easements 
running with the chain of title and recorded in the office of the clerk of the superior court.  

(6)  Up to two accessory dwelling units may be built on country properties in accordance with this 
chapter and the following requirements:  

a.  The gross floor area in the first accessory dwelling unit shall not exceed 900 square feet.  

b.  The gross floor area in the second accessory dwelling unit shall not exceed 750 square feet, 
except that, on lots exceeding 15 acres, the second accessory dwelling unit may take the 
form of a tenant house containing up to a maximum of 2,000 square feet of gross floor area.  

c.  Existing historic structures, including historic accessory buildings, more than 75 years old 
that exceed these floor area limits may be permitted by the county commission to be used 
as accessory dwelling units without having to meet the dimensional setback requirements of 
this chapter.  

(7)  Country properties shall meet the following dimensional standards:  

a.  Minimum road frontage: 50 feet.  

b.  Minimum lot width at building line: 200 feet.  

c.  Minimum front yard: 100 feet.  

d.  Minimum side yard: 100 feet.  

e.  Minimum rear yard: 100 feet.  



 
 O-030623__ 

32 
Draft Ordinance Amendment 

P&Z 02/16/2023 
BOC 03/06/2023 

 

f.  Maximum building height: 2.5 stories or 35 feet, except as provided in section 119-302.  

g.  Maximum impervious coverage: five percent.  

Sec. 119-297. - Additional standards applicable in all village areas.  

(a)  Lot area. Area contained within a lot shall be exclusive of 100-year floodplains, wetlands and slopes 
exceeding 25 percent, with the exception of country properties in green space.  

(b)  Flag lots. Flag lots shall have at least 20 feet of frontage on a street. No more than two contiguous 
flag lots shall be created, and flag lots shall not comprise more than ten percent of all lots within a 
village. The "pole" end of such lots shall not exceed 150 feet in length measured to the street right-of-
way, except for country properties for which there is no such restriction.  

(c)  Height.  

(1)  Building height shall be between 1.5 and 2.5 stories above grade at the front elevation, with a 
maximum height of 35 feet, except as provided in subsection (c)(2) of this section.  

(2)  In the central residential area the maximum height of residential dwelling units with a roof pitch 
of 7:12 or greater may be increased to 40 feet.  

(d)  Maximum impervious cover.  

 

Impervious Cover  

 

(max.)  

Central residential area  

 Lots 4,000—6,000 sf in area  75%  

 Lots greater than 6,000 sf in area  50%  

Village residential area  60%  

Storefront area  80%  

Village green space area  5%  

(e)  Accessory dwelling units.  

(1)  No more than 15 percent of all the residential lots within a village may have accessory dwelling 
units.  

(2)  Accessory dwelling units are not counted toward maximum village density.  

(3)  Accessory dwelling units shall be limited to one per lot.  

(4)  Accessory dwelling units shall be limited in size to a maximum of 900 square feet.  

(5)  Either the principal or the accessory dwelling unit shall be owner-occupied.  

Sec. 119-298. - Design standards for village development and greenway areas.  



 
 O-030623__ 

33 
Draft Ordinance Amendment 

P&Z 02/16/2023 
BOC 03/06/2023 

 

(a)  Overall form.  

(1)  New village development shall be generally compact with a well-defined edge between new 
developed areas of the village and adjacent rural, undeveloped lands, and when extending the 
geographical boundaries of an existing village. This shall not apply in the case of infill parcels 
within an existing village.  

(2)  Areas of new construction shall be located to best preserve natural resources, cultural features, 
and scenic vistas. Modification of existing topography shall be minimized to the greatest extent 
possible.  

(b)  Block design.  

(1)  Villages shall be designed in a generally rectilinear pattern of blocks and interconnecting streets 
and rear lanes, defined by buildings, landscaping, pedestrian ways, sidewalks and street furniture. 
To avoid the monotony of a rigid grid layout and to better conform to the natural terrain, streets 
may include frequent gentle curves.  

(2)  The maximum length of a block shall be 500 feet. This length may be extended up to 800 feet 
when mid-block footpaths are provided.  

(3)  Rectilinear blocks of the dimensions required in subsection (b) of this section may be reshaped 
at the discretion of the municipal governing body when topography, existing vegetation, or 
hydrology considerations influence block shape and size.  

(4)  In the storefront area, at least one pedestrian pathway, a minimum of eight feet wide, shall be 
provided for every 250 feet of street frontage, connecting with rear parking lots.  

(5)  Each block that includes storefronts and/or townhouse lots less than 40 feet wide shall be 
designed to include a rear alley serving parking areas or garages in the rear.  

(6)  Local access streets shall be configured using a design speed of 25 mph. Traffic calming 
techniques shall include "T" intersections, traffic islands, circles, loops or crescents, roundabouts, 
three-way and four-way stop signs. Speed bumps shall be avoided. At least 25 percent of local 
access streets shall terminate in "T" intersections. The distance between "T" intersections shall 
not exceed three blocks or 1,500 linear feet, whichever is less. "T" intersections shall meet the 
offset requirements from other intersections set forth in the county development ordinance 
included herein as chapter 105.  

(c)  Locational considerations for village uses.  

(1)  Residential uses, excluding upper story dwelling units in the storefront area, shall not be located 
within 500 feet of an arterial highway having four or more lanes.  

(2)  Transitions.  

a.  Similar land uses shall face one another across a street, while dissimilar land uses shall abut 
along alleys or rear parking areas.  

b.  Where feasible, a village green shall be used to separate residential blocks from mixed-use 
blocks.  

(3)  All dwelling units shall be no more than 1,500 feet from the storefront area.  

(4)  Nonresidential uses projected to generate more than 800 trips per day shall be located to permit 
vehicular access from outside the village without passing through residential streets. This part of 
the village shall be located close to streets having a functional class designation of collector or 
higher.  

Sec. 119-299. - Design standards for green space.  



 
 O-030623__ 

34 
Draft Ordinance Amendment 

P&Z 02/16/2023 
BOC 03/06/2023 

 

(a)  Green space shall be delineated in accordance with the methods of conservation subdivision design 
and the standards in chapter 105, article VI, setting forth the four-step design process, the prioritized 
list of resources to be conserved, and additional design considerations.  

(b)  Green space shall consist of two types: natural and formal.  

(1)  Natural green space consists of, but is not limited to: meadows, woodlands, large specimen 
trees, hedgerows, wetlands, floodplain and steep slopes.  

(2)  Formal green space consists of: greens, commons, squares and parks that are defined by 
building walls, streets and street trees.  

(c)  Greens, commons, squares and parks.  

(1)  Greens, commons, squares, and parks shall serve a variety of outdoor leisure and assembly 
needs of village residents and enhance the form and appearance of the village.  

(2)  Greens, commons, squares and parks shall be distributed throughout the village in the village 
residential area, the central residential area and, when included, the storefront area.  

(3)  When a storefront area is proposed, a main village green shall be required, which shall be:  

a.  Located within 200 feet of the outer perimeter of the storefront area. These location 
requirements may be adjusted by reason of topography or natural resources to be preserved, 
at the discretion of the county commission.  

b.  Of pedestrian scale, approximately one-half to one acre in area, and shall be no longer or 
wider than 300 feet.  

(4)  Additional, smaller greens, commons and squares, no less than 8,000 square feet in size, shall 
be dispersed throughout the village in such a way that no lot is more than 1,250 feet from a green, 
common or square.  

(5)  All greens shall be planted with shade trees along their edges, at intervals not greater than 40 
feet.  

(6)  The views of greens, commons and squares shall be maximized by locating green space in 
"terminal vista" locations as often as possible, such as the ends of streets at three-way 
intersections, and/or along the outer edges of curving streets.  

(7)  Commercial areas shall surround, be located adjacent to, or be across the street from a public 
green, common or square at least 10,000 square feet in area.  

(d)  Accessory dwelling units. On conservancy lots, accessory dwelling units in principal residences or in 
new traditional outbuildings, such as barns, stables, carriage houses, and springhouses, shall be 
designed as shown in the county architectural design guidelines.  

Sec. 119-300. - Design standards for storefront area.  

(a)  Design considerations along arterial roads. When the storefront area is located along an existing 
major arterial street the following provisions shall apply:  

(1)  The buildings shall be designed with display windows and signage facing the major arterial street.  

(2)  Canopy trees shall be planted at intervals not greater than 40 feet along the major arterial street.  

(3)  The storefront area shall not parallel the major arterial street for a distance greater than 600 feet, 
unless the storefronts are located behind a landscaped buffer area providing visual screening in 
all seasons of the year, or on the opposite side of a village green extending the full length of the 
storefront area as it parallels the major arterial street. If berms are used within the buffer they 
shall be no taller than two feet and shall taper gradually into the landscape with slopes not 
exceeding 1:5.  



 
 O-030623__ 

35 
Draft Ordinance Amendment 

P&Z 02/16/2023 
BOC 03/06/2023 

 

(b)  Architectural design guidelines. All buildings and structures located in the storefront area shall comply 
with the county architectural design standards.  

(c)  Landscaping of commercial buildings. In addition to the requirements of chapter 105, the following 
regulations shall apply:  

(1)  To reduce maintenance, ensure longevity, and reinforce the indigenous materials of the area, 
landscaping around commercial buildings and their parking lots shall emphasize native species 
trees, shrubs, and flowers. Species shall be selected to provide visual interest at different times 
of the year, with relatively low maintenance needs.  

(2)  The facades of storefront buildings may be separated from the sidewalk by a landscaped strip 
no greater in depth than three feet, except as necessary to accommodate outdoor eating 
establishments, or in courtyard designs.  

(d)  Street furniture.  

(1)  At least one public trash receptacle of a design and color approved by the county commission 
shall be provided in each block on each side of the street.  

(2)  Public benches of a design and color approved by the county commission shall be provided at 
bus stops and at intervals no greater than 100 feet on each block; and in greens, commons, 
squares and parks at a rate of one bench per 5,000 square feet.  

(3)  At least one bicycle rack adjacent to the sidewalk shall be provided on each block, with a paved 
pad designed to accommodate it.  

(e)  Signs. In addition to the requirements in chapter 111, all signs shall conform to the following 
regulations:  

(1)  Signs shall not be freestanding and shall be affixed to a building facade, canopy, or arcade.  

(2)  The top of signs (except window signs) shall be located no higher than the sills of second-story 
windows.  

(3)  Signs shall be constructed of wood, metal or synthetic material, provided that the typeface and 
logos have a dimensional rather than flat quality.  

(4)  Sign colors shall be dark background colors with light-colored lettering.  

(5)  Signs may be illuminated from external light sources only; lighting shall conform to the regulations 
contained in this article. Flashing and moving lighting is prohibited.  

(6)  Moving signs and signs with moving elements are prohibited.  

(7)  External neon signs are prohibited. Non-flashing neon signs may be displayed inside windows 
provided they occupy no more than 15 percent of the glass area of the window in which they are 
displayed.  

Sec. 119-301. - Design standards for central residential and village residential areas.  

(a)  Architecture. Housing styles, shapes, and materials shall be varied, within the overall theme of 
traditional village dwellings as shown in the county architectural design standards.  

(1)  Single-family detached dwellings, excluding those on country properties, shall be designed so 
that:  

a.  At least two-thirds shall be oriented with their gable-ends facing the street.  

b.  At least 35 percent shall have a covered front entry porch, raised a minimum of 18 inches 
above ground level.  



 
 O-030623__ 

36 
Draft Ordinance Amendment 

P&Z 02/16/2023 
BOC 03/06/2023 

 

(2)  Two-, three-, and four-family dwellings shall be designed to emulate traditional buildings of this 
nature in county historic settlements or to resemble large single-family residences as shown in 
the architectural design standards.  

(3)  Roof pitch. Pitched roofs shall have slopes between 8:12 and 12:12.  

(b)  Building materials. Materials for the external facades of the buildings shall conform to the architectural 
design guidelines.  

(c)  Accessory dwelling units.  

(1)  The design of accessory dwelling units shall comply with the following regulations:  

a.  Accessory dwellings or outbuildings shall be designed according to the principles shown in 
the architectural design standards.  

b.  Exterior fire escapes are prohibited on any side of accessory dwelling units except at the 
rear.  

c.  All off-street parking for accessory dwelling units shall be located to the side or rear of the 
accessory dwelling if not contained in an enclosed garage below the accessory dwelling (a 
garage apartment).  

(2)  Issuance of permits for accessory units shall be contingent upon county health department 
approval for any on-site sewage disposal systems needed.  

Sec. 119-302. - Modifications.  

The following modifications are permitted under the terms and specifications herein:  

(1)  Height. The height limitations of this chapter shall not apply to chimneys, spires, gables, cupolas, 
standpipes, flagpoles, monuments, transmission towers, radio or television antennas, cables, 
water tanks and similar structures and necessary mechanical appurtenances for the village 
district, provided that no such exception shall cover at any level more than ten percent of the area 
of the building's roof or the ground on which it is located. Such architectural features on 
institutional or civic buildings may equal the height of the building.  

(2)  Side yard. Residential side yards may be reduced to zero ("zero lot line") in the central residential 
area and the village residential area, when a dwelling has either no side windows, or when the 
side window sills are located at least 64 inches above the finished floor elevation.  

 

DIVISION 6. - Reserved 

SECTION XII 

The Code of Ordinances of Jasper County, Georgia, Part II – Code of Ordinances, Chapter 119 – Zoning, 
Sec. 119-347 Application of parking requirements, Subsection (i) is hereby amended by repealing the 
entire subsection and renumbering the rest of the subsection. 
 

ARTICLE VI. - OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING REQUIREMENTS  



O-030623__ 

37 
Ordinance Amendment Draft 

P&Z 2/16/2023 
BOC 3/06/2023 

 

Sec. 119-347. - Application of parking requirements.  

(a)  As a minimum, an off-street parking space shall consist of 180 square feet (nine feet by 20 feet) of 
storage space for one automobile, plus adequate space for maneuvering and parking one automobile. 
For compact vehicles only, as a minimum, an off-street parking space shall consist of 127.5 square 
feet (eight feet, six inches by 15 feet) of storage space for one automobile, plus adequate space for 
maneuvering and parking of one automobile. Adequate space for maneuvering and parking one 
automobile shall mean the following: Two-way aisles between parking spaces shall be at least 24 feet 
in width. One-way aisles between parking spaces shall be at least 14 feet in width for 45-degree angle 
parking, at least 18 feet, six inches in width for 60-degree parking, and at least 24 feet in width for 90-
degree angle parking.  

(b)  Parking spaces for one-family dwellings, two-family dwellings and townhouse dwellings shall be on 
the same lot as the building to be served except as otherwise provided in this article. No parking space 
shall be permitted between the front building line and the front property line except on a bona fide 
paved or graveled driveway leading to a garage, carport or other permanent parking space located to 
the rear of the front building line. However, garages and carports may be located in front of the dwelling 
if attached to the principal building and if their parking bay entrances are perpendicular to the public 
road fronting the dwelling. In all nonresidential zones, paved parking areas will not be permitted 
between the front building line and the front property line except where a variance permitting such 
parking has been approved by the zoning board of appeals according to the requirements of this 
chapter.  

(c)  Parking spaces for multiple-family dwelling shall be located on the same lot as the building to be 
served and not more than 150 feet from each dwelling unit along the nearest pedestrian way.  

(d)  Parking spaces for nonresidential buildings shall be located on the same lot as the building to be 
served except where additional spaces are required by enlargement of use or, where facilities are 
provided and maintained collectively, the required spaces may be located no more than 300 feet from 
each building served. No more than 50 percent of the parking requirements for uses in commercial 
and industrial zoning districts may be provided in off-site public or private parking facilities located not 
more than 300 feet from principal entrances to buildings where uses are located.  

(e)  No more than 50 percent of the parking requirements for theaters, auditoriums, restaurants or similar 
uses may be provided and used jointly by office and retail uses not normally open for business during 
the same hours. Up to 100 percent of the parking requirements for churches and other places of 
worship may be provided by and used jointly with office and retail uses not normally open for business 
during the hours of religious and similar services.  

(f)  Parking requirements for uses in institutional districts may be provided in common parking areas that 
shall be approved by condition of zoning approval or as part of the institution's comprehensive site 
development plan.  

(g)  Parking requirements for developments with more than one use shall be determined by adding the 
parking requirements for the different uses within the development.  

(h)  No more than 25 percent of the parking spaces required for multiple-family residential, institutional, 
commercial, and industrial uses may be designed for the use of compact vehicles. Parking spaces for 
compact vehicles shall be clearly designated by signs or other special markings for the exclusive use 
of such vehicles.  

(i)  In all village plan zoning districts, one of the required parking spaces per unit must be enclosed within 
a structure attached to, adjacent to or enclosed within the structure of each dwelling unit. The other 
required spaces may be provided in driveways, carports or turning courts, on streets or common 
drives.  



O-030623__ 

38 
Ordinance Amendment Draft 

P&Z 2/16/2023 
BOC 3/06/2023 

 

(j) (i) Parking spaces for use by handicapped persons shall be provided as required by the state 
handicapped accessibility law (O.C.G.A. § 30-3-1 et seq.).  

(k) (j) Required parking for personal storage facilities, mini-warehouses and similar temporary storage 
facilities shall not be permitted in aisles and driveways between storage buildings and facilities, but 
shall be located in a separate parking area on the same property as the facility to be served. Use of 
aisles and driveways shall be limited to driving, standing, loading and unloading.  

(l) (k) Except for spaces designated for handicapped persons, parking and loading shall not be permitted 
within any front yard for nonresidential buildings when located on the same lot as the building to be 
served. Parking shall not be permitted within the front yard of any agricultural or residential districts, 
except upon a driveway or within a carport or garage that is part of the principal building.  

SECTION XIII 

The Code of Ordinances of Jasper County, Georgia, Part II – Code of Ordinances, Chapter 119 – Zoning, 
Article VI. Off-Street Parking and Loading Requirements, Section 119-348 Minimum requirements for 
off-street parking is hereby amended by deleting all references to V-P Village Plan as shown below: 
 

ARTICLE VI. - OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING REQUIREMENTS  

Sec. 119-348. - Minimum requirements for off-street parking.  

Minimum requirements for off-street parking shall be as follows:  

Single-family dwellings, in general  Two parking space per dwelling unit.  

Single-family dwellings, 

townhouses (V-P districts)  
One and one-half spaces per dwelling unit.  

Two-family dwellings  One and one-half spaces per dwelling unit.  

Multiple-family dwellings, in 

general  
One and one-half spaces per dwelling unit.  

Multiple-family dwellings, second 

story or third story in village plan 

districts  

One space per dwelling unit.  

Roominghouses, lodginghouses 

and boardinghouses  
One space per each two bedrooms.  

Personal care homes  One space per each two beds.  

Churches and other places of 

worship  
One space per each eight seats in the sanctuary or meeting room 

where seating is fixed or one space per 50 square feet of gross 



O-030623__ 

39 
Ordinance Amendment Draft 

P&Z 2/16/2023 
BOC 3/06/2023 

 

floor area of sanctuary or meeting room where seating is not 

fixed.  

Schools, public or private, 

elementary and middle  

Two spaces per classroom, plus one space per each eight seats in 

auditorium or assembly area where seating is fixed or one space 

per 50 square feet of gross floor area of auditorium or assembly 

area where seating is not fixed.  

Hotels, motels, tourist homes  

One and one-quarter spaces per guestroom. Conference and 

meeting facilities associated with a hotel or similar place of 

lodging: One space per 40 square feet of floor area of largest 

assembly room where seating is not fixed.  

Fraternity and sorority houses  One space per bed.  

Homes for the elderly  One space per 2¼ dwelling units.  

Clubs, social organizations and 

fraternal lodges  
One space per 100 square feet of gross floor area.  

Government and business offices; 

office buildings  
One space per 400 square feet of gross floor area.  

Retail sales and service 

establishments  
One space per 200 square feet of gross floor area.  

Restaurants, nightclubs, taverns 

and similar establishments serving 

food and beverages  

One space per 100 square feet of gross floor area.  

Theaters, auditoriums, funeral 

homes, community centers and 

other places of assembly  

One space per each four seats where seating is fixed; one space 

per 25 square feet of gross floor area of assembly area where 

seating is not fixed.  

Nursery schools, kindergartens, day 

care centers  
Two spaces per classroom.  

Hospitals, sanitariums, nursing 

homes, convalescent homes, and 

similar uses  

One space per two beds.  



O-030623__ 

40 
Ordinance Amendment Draft 

P&Z 2/16/2023 
BOC 3/06/2023 

 

Bowling alleys  Five spaces per alley.  

Manufacturing, warehousing, and 

storage facilities; distribution 

centers; wholesale facilities  

One space per 600 square feet of gross floor area.  

Vehicle repair garages, paint and 

body shops, welding shops, and 

similar establishments  

One space per 200 square feet of gross floor area.  

Vehicle service stations  Three spaces per service bay.  

   

 

SECTION XIV 
 

The sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses or phrases of this Ordinance are severable, and if any phrase, 
clause, sentence paragraph or section of this Ordinance shall be declared illegal by the valid judgement 
or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such illegality shall not affect any of the remaining 
phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of this Ordinance. 

 

SECTION XV 
 

All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby expressly repealed. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



O-030623__ 

41 
Ordinance Amendment Draft 

P&Z 2/16/2023 
BOC 3/06/2023 

 

SECTION XVI 
 

The adoption date of this ordinance amendment is upon creation. 
 

[SIGNATURE LINE BELOW] 
 

SO ORDAINED this ____ day of March, 2023 
 

        BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
        OF JASPER COUNTY, GEORGIA 
 

 
        ____________________________ 
        Don Jernigan, Chairman 
        District 3 
 
 

        ____________________________ 
        Shelia Jones, Commissioner 
        District 1 
 
 
        ____________________________ 
        Bruce Henry, Commissioner 
        District 2 
 
 

        ____________________________ 
        Gerald Stunkel, Commissioner 
        District 4 
 
 
        ____________________________ 
ATTEST:       Steven Ledford, Commissioner 
        District 5 
 

______________________________    {Jasper County, Georgia Seal} 
Sharon Robinson, County Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

___________________________________ 
____________________, County Attorney 



 
 
 
 
Presentation/Delegation - 1 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  BOC 
 
Date:  March 6, 2022 
 
Subject:  Long Term Recovery Group Discussion – Ed Westbrook  
 
 
 
Summary:    
 
                                                                                                                                                       
Ed Westbrook will discuss the Long Term Recovery Group formation 

     
 
Background:                                                                                                                                                                 
 
 
 
 
Cost: 
None    
 
 
 
Recommended Motion:                                                                                                                                    
None Required 
 
  



 
 
 
Presentation/Delegation 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  BOC 
 
Date:  March 6, 2022 
 
Subject:  Long Term Recovery Group Proclamation  
 
 
 
 
Summary:   
 
                                                                                                                                                        
Staff will read and Present the Proclamation for approval and signatures. 

     
 
Background:                                                                                                                                                                 
 
 
 
 
Cost: 
None    
 
 
 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion:                                                                                                                                    
None Required 
 
  



  Proclamation # 2023.03.06 

 
PROCLAMATION OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS REGARDING 
THE ESTABLISHMENT OF A JASPER COUNTY LONG-TERM RECOVERY COMMITTEE  

 
Whereas, the Jasper County Board of Commissioners acknowledges the fact that on January 12, 
2023; Jasper County and its citizens experience a devastating weather event resulting in the 
formation of tornados; and 

 
Whereas, the Jasper County Board of Commissioners further acknowledges that many Jasper 
County Citizens have been affected by the above-mentioned storms; and 

 
Whereas, the Jasper County Board of Commissioners acknowledges that many of the victims of the 
above-mentioned storms face long-lasting effects and are in need of long-term assistance in 
recovery from the devastating effects of events such as the tornados that occurred on January 12th, 
2023; and 

 
 Whereas, the Jasper County Board of Commissioners acknowledges that Recovery is defined in 
the National Disaster Recovery Framework document as “Recovery is not only about the restoration 
of structures, systems and services – although they are critical. A successful recovery is also about 
individuals and families being able to rebound from their losses, and sustain their physical, social, 
economic and spiritual well-being” and  

 
Whereas, the Jasper County Board of Commissioners wishes to facilitate and foster individual and 
family recovery by forming a volunteer committee to assist individuals and families with long-term 
recovery from disastrous and devastating events.    

 
Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved that the Board of Commissioners of Jasper County hereby 
recommends the formation of  “Jasper County Long-Term Recovery Committee” to facilitate and 
foster individual and family recovery efforts.  

 
Be It Further Resolved that the Jasper County Board of Commissioners recommends Jasper 
County Long-Term Recovery Committee (JCLTRC) will consist of the following criteria. 
 

(1) Consist of Five to Nine members. Members should reflect the diversity of the disaster-
affected community and be established in accordance with the guidelines outlined in the 
National Voluntary Organizations Active in Disaster, Long Term Recovery Guide, 2012 
edition.  

(2) Develop and adhere to a JCLTC mission statement and by-laws. 
(3) Elect among the members a Chairperson, Secretary, and Treasurer. 
(4) Report to the Board of Commissioners of Jasper County activities and results.      

  
  

  
This 6th day of March, 2023 by action of the Jasper County Board of Commissioners. 

 
 

By:    
Chairman 

 
ATTEST:   

County Clerk 
 
 

(County Seal) 



 

 

Business Item 1: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Planning and Zoning 
 
Date:   March 6, 2023 
 
Subject:  FP23-001 – Approval process for Phase 2 of Lakeview Estates 
 
Summary:  FP23-001 – request is to finalize the Final Plat for Lakeview Estates, Phase 2, located off of 

Lloyd Street, Map & Parcel 031A 035.  The request is to finalize the approved development for a 
total of 10 lots on 21.98 acres.  

 
 
 
Background: This is Phase 2 to an existing subdivision, Lakeview Estates. The final plat for Phase  

1 was completed in 2007 and is completely built out.  On January 3, 2022 the Board of 
Commissioners approved the Preliminary Plat for Phase 2 of Lakeview Estates which consists of 
ten lots under the previous requirements of the conservation subdivision yield plan to come up 
with lot sizes and layouts.  The developer moved forward with a Land Disturbance Permit based 
off of the approved Preliminary Plat and constructed the development based on that.   

 
On February 16, 2023 this was heard by the Planning and Zoning Board in which they 

   recommended approval of the Final Plat 5-0.  
 
  
   
 
Cost:    Required legal advertisement only 
 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion: Given the Planning Commission recommended approval unanimously and it 

matches the approved Preliminary Plat, Staff recommend approval. 
 
 
 

  



 

 
Business Item 2:  
 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 

Department:  Planning and Zoning 
 

Date:   March 6, 2023 
 

Subject:  Ordinance Amendment to the Development Regulations and Zoning Ordinance to update 
definitions and Residential Zoning Districts designations 

 

Summary:  Consideration of an Ordinance Amendment to Part II, Code of Ordinances which include:  
Chapter 105 – Development Standards & Regulations, Sec. 105-28. - General definitions; 
Section 105-162 - Conservation Subdivision Design, subsection 3.C; and Chapter 119 – Zoning, 
Sec. 119-48 Conventional zoning districts; Sec. 119-95 Relationship between land use and 
zoning districts; Sec. 119-244 Development Standards; Sec. 119-269 Table of Permitted Uses; 
Sec. 119-196 R-2 Single-Family Residential District, Low Intensity; Sec. 119-197 R-1 Single-
Family Residential District, Medium Density; Sec. 119-198 RL Residential Lake Districts; Sec. 
119-199 V-P Village Plan Mixed-Use Residential District; Division 6 V-P Village Plan Mixed 
Use District Development Standards including Sec. 119-287 through Sec. 119-302; Sec. 119-347 
Application of parking requirements; Sec. 119-348 Minimum requirements for off-street parking. 

 

The amendments to the Development Standards & Regulations will address amending 
definitions for Conservation Subdivision and Setback, combining the R1 & R2 districts into a 
single district named RES, and deleting any reference to RL, R1, R2 or V-P zoning districts.  
The amendments to the Zoning Ordinance include deleting any reference to R2 zoning and 
combining R2 and R1 into a single zoning district entitled RES; deleting any reference to RL 
zoning district; and deleting any reference to V-P Village Plan zoning district.  

 

Background:  The Ordinance Amendment is based off of the Joint Work Session between the Board of 
Commissioners and the Planning & Zoning Board on January 5, 2023 discussion and direction 
by the Board of Commissioners.  Should the amendment be approved and it is the desire of the 
Board of Commissioners, it would give grounds to remove the emergency Moratorium that 
restricts any zoning petitions or development requests in the current R2 zoning district as the 
amendment, if approved as written, combines the R1 and R2 Zoning Districts into a single 
district defined as RES (Residential).  

 

On February 16, 2023 the Planning & Zoning Board recommended unanimous approval of all 
amendment sections with minor changes to clear up minor errors in the draft.   

 

Cost:    Required legal advertisement only 
 

Recommended Motion: Board’s discretion 
 
  



 

 

 

Business Item 3:  
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Planning and Zoning 
 
Date: March 6, 2023 
 
Subject: Renewal of 2023 Alcohol License for Bear Creek Marina Restaurant 
 
Summary:   
 
 
Bear Creek Marina Restaurant, Application number 2023-A-011 located at 60 Bear Creek Marina Rd., 
Mansfield, GA 30055. Name of applicant: Donald Wright – Pouring license for distilled spirits, beer, and wine. 
– Renewal 
 
 
 
 
Background:  
 
The renewal request has completed and passed updated criminal background check with no infractions and 
there have been no complaint calls to 911 regarding the above property relating to alcohol.  
 
Cost: 
N/A 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion: 
 

While this is certainly the Board’s discretion, given the application and background meets the requirements staff 
recommends approval of the 2023 alcohol renewal request for the above restaurant 

 

  



 

 

 

Business Item 4: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Recreation 
 
Date:   March 6, 2023 
 
Subject: Jasper County Recreation Board Appointment 
 
 
Summary:  
  
Jasper County Recreation Board has 1 current vacancy due to the resignation of Keldrick Davis, whose term 
would be expiring October 2025.  
 
Staff has advertised the need for a citizen volunteer to fill the unexpired term. We have received application 
from the following: 
 
Jeremy Johnson 
 
 
 
Background:  
 
The Jasper County Recreation Board is a five (5) member board  
 
 
 
 
Cost:  None 
 
Recommended Motion:  
Board Discretion 
 

 

  









 
 
Business Item 5: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Roads and Bridges 
 
Date:   March 6, 2023 
 
Subject: 2022 & 2023 LMIG Project – Jackson Lake Rd from SR 11 to SR 212 – Bid Results 
  
 
 
Summary:  
2022 and 2023 LMIG Funding Combined into a Single Project 
 
Project – Jackson Lake Rd – SR 11 to SR 212 – 4.13 Miles 
 
Bids Received: 
Pittman Construction Compant $1,846,351.10 
Blount Construction Company $2,268,046.63 
 
Background:  
 
GDOT 2022 LMIG Amount  $585,310.96 
GDOT 2023 LMIG Amount  $595,655.46 
Total GDOT 2022 – 2023  $1,180,966.42 
 
Total GDOT 2022 – 2023  $1,180,966.42 
Required 30% County Match  $   354,289.93 
Minimum 2022 – 2023 Project  $1,535,256.35 
 
 
Cost:   
 
LMIG Funding    $1,180,966.42 
Required 30% Local Match from Splost $   354,289.93 
Minimum Required    $1,535,256.35 
 
Blount Bid     $1,846,351.10 
Minimum Required    $1,535,256.35 
Difference     $   311,094.75 
 
 
Recommended Motion:  
Award 2022 and 2023 LMIG Combined Funding Project to Pittman Construction Company in the amount of 
$1,846,351.10. 
  

















 

 

Business Item 6: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Public Works 
 
Date:  March 6, 2023 
 
Subject:  Bids for Public Works 15ft Batwing Right Away Mower 
 
Summary:  
 
To purchase a new 15ft Batwing Right Away Mower 
 
Atlantic  Southern- Bush Hog-2815 Flex Wing Rotary Cutter   - ETA 30 DAYS        $26,157.00 
Hays Tractor-Land Pride RC5715  - ETA 10-20 DAYS          $24,950.00 
Wade Tractor- Woods BW15.61  - ETA 270-370 DAYS       $26,729.67 
Wade Tractor- Woods BW15.61  - ETA 270-370 DAYS      $24,353.94 
Wade Tractor- Bush Hog BH3815 -ETA 270-370 DAYS      $26,046.40 
Wade Tractor- Bush Hog BH4115 -ETA 270-365 DAYS      $24,521.40 
Lake Country Tractor Modern Brand   - ETA 30days          $21,759.00 
 
 
 
Background:   
 
Public Works is in need of a new 15 foot right away mower, to replace the current mower that is broken down 
beyond repair. 
 
Cost:  
 
$26,157.00 
 
 
Recommended Motion:  
 
Purchase the Bush hog 2815 Flex-Wing Rotary Cutter                 Atlantic Southern  
 Bush Hog 2815 Flex-Wing Rotary Cutter MEETS DOT Specifications, GEAR BOXES have a 10 YEAR 
WARRANTY, ONE YEAR WARRANTY on ALL DRIVE LINE COMPONENTS, and SHELDS. 

  

















































 

Business Item 7: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Roads and Bridges 
 
Date:   March 6, 2023 
 
Subject: Tree and Limb Debris Removal Services – Tornado Damage Area - Bid Results 
  
 
 
Summary:  
 
Received Bids 
Murell’s Tree Service   $30.00 
Mattison Trucking   $29.00 
Piedmont Forestry   $13.59 
Looks Great Servuces   $  8.50 
Ceres Enviornmental   $  7.84 
CTC - Custom Tree Care  $  5.98 
 
All bid pricing proposals are based on $ per cubic yard deliverd to the Jasper County Landfill. 
 
 
 
 
Background:  
 
Jasper County BOC requested bids for tree and limb debris removal services for clearing tree and limb debris on 
county right of way caused by the tornado event on January 12, 2023. 
 
 
 
Cost:   
 
FEMA Reimbiusement Rate – 75% 
GEMA Reimbursement Rate – 10% 
Total Reimbursment Rate – 85% 
 
 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion:  
Board Discretion 
  















































































 
 
Business Item 8: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Senior Center 
 
Date:   March 6, 2023 
 
Subject: Vehicle Quotes – Senior Center 
  
 
 
Staff was instructed to get prices for Van or Bus Purchase 
 
A break down of our discovery is attached and the summary is listed below: 

• 2012 Ford E-350 Chassis; 28,000 miles $58,400 
• 2017 Ford T-350 Chassis; 70,000 miles $79,400 
• 2020 Ford Transit Passenger Van 29,325 miles $47,998 

 
Background:  
 
The Jasper County Board of Commissioners discussed the cost effectiveness in the up keep of the Jasper 
County Senior Center’s 2009 Ford Van. In November 2022, the Jasper County Senior Center presented the cost 
of repairs and estimates that totaled $5,422.93; the estimates that were presented did not reflect total repairs. 
Our 2009 Ford Van currently has 285,125 miles. This vehicle is permanently out of service 
 
 
Cost:  New pricing quotes range from:  $47,998  
                                                                 $58,400   
                                                                 $79,400 
 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion: 
 
Board’s Discretion 
  



THEBUSCENTE^
FAMILY OF COMPANIES

PROPOSAL EXCLUSIVELY FOR:

Jasper County Senior Center
Proposal Date: February 16, 2023

M. Rahman

Commercial Bus Sales

PREPARED BY

A TRADITION IN TRANSPORTATION SINCE 1972
Atlanta, GA

mrahman@thebuscenter.com

(404) 805-9657

THIEBUSCENTER

ATLANTA
ATLANTA. CA

TRAISiaPOPTATIOfM

SOUTH
fttKMINCHAM A I

OPTIONS INCLUDED

Seating

OEM Driver Seat

Freedman Highback Reclining Passenger Seals

Level 4 Leatherette Upholstery

2pt Retractable Seatbelts
Armrests

Seat Sliders

Electrical

LED Dome Lights

Door Activated Interior Lights

12V / USB Charging Stations in Pass Area

Audio / Video Equipment

Deluxe AM/FM/CD Player

4 Upgraded Speakers

Climate Control

Safety55,000 BTU Rear AC System

65,000 BTU Rear Heater Rear Back Up Camera
First Aid Kit, Fire Extinguisher, & Safety Triangles

Back Up Alarm
ADA / Paratransit

This Unit is Not ADA Accessible

Factory Warranties

Flooring

Gerflor Non-Slip Safety Flooring (grey)

Additional Options (NOT Included in Pricing)

Basic Exterior Graphics - $450
Sales Tax - Not Collected for out of state sales

Delivery - $1.85/mie
Doc Fee -$250.00

Deposits are strongly encouraged to hold vehicles
«**«

Luggage

Upgraded Overhead Luggage Racks w/ Vinyl Covering

PRICING:

$ 79,400

$ 3,650

Unit Price

Doors & Windows Discounts:

Less Trade Value
(Vehicle Description)

36" Wide Electric Passenger Entry Door

Rear Window

Total Price
(FOB Acworth, GA)

$ 75,750

$ 1,079
$ 1,515

Est. LEASE Pmt. 60 Months

Est. FINANCE Pmt. 60 Months
Customer Signature:

Terms and Conditions:'Lease and Finance

payment based on SO down
* $400 Doc Fee. upon credit

approvat. Lease based off of

15k mites per year.

20% Deposit Required to Hold Unit. All quotes valid

for 30 days. Ail slock units are subject to prior sale-

price or Payments do not include tax. license,

or delivery unless stated.

Sales Rep. Signature:

Date:

Page 2 of 4



r

THEBUSCENTE^
FAMILY OF COMPANIES

PROPOSAL EXCLUSIVELY FOR:

Jasper County Senior Center
Proponal Do/e: Fobroary 16, 2023

M. Rahman

Commercial Bus Sales

PREPARED BY

A TRADITION IN TRANSPORTATION SINCE 1972
Atlanta, GA

mrahman@thebuscenter.com

(404) 805-9657
THEBUaCENTeR

ATLANTA
A u A N T A , C A

TAANePORTAriON

SOUTH
|{RMIN6HAM A I

r
OPTIONS INCLUDED

Seating

OEM Driver Seat

Freedman Highback Reclining Passenger Seats

Level 4 Leatherette Upholstery

2pt Retractable Seatbelts
Armrests

Seat Sliders

Electrical

LED Dome Lights
Door Activated Interior Lights

12V / USB Charging Stations in Pass Area

Audio / Video Equipment

Deluxe AM/FM/CD Player

4 Upgraded Speakers

Climate Control

Safety55,000 BTU Rear AC System

65,000 BTU Rear Heater Rear Back Up Camera

First Aid Kit, Fire Extinguisher, & Safety Triangles

Back Up Alarm
ADA / Paratransit

This Unit is Not ADA Accessible

Factory Warranties

Flooring

Gerflor Non-Slip Safety Flooring (grey)

Additional Options (NOT Included in Pricing)

Basic Exterior Graphics - $450
Sales Tax - Not Collected for out of state sales

Delivery - $1.85/mie
Doc Fee -S250.00

'●’'Deposits are strongly encouraged to hold vehicles ● ***

Luggage

Upgraded Overhead Luggage Racks w/ Vinyl Covering

PRICING:

$ 79.400
$ 3.650

Unit Price
Doors & Windows Discounts:

Less Trade Value
IVdhicIa Desciiplm)

36” Wide Electric Passenger Entry Door
Rear Window

Total Price
(FOB Acworth, GA) $ 75,750

$ 1,079
$ 1,515

Est. LEASE Pmt. 60 Months
Est. FINANCE Pmt. 60 Months

Customer Signature:
Terms and Conditions:'Lease and Finance

payment based on SO down
S400 Doc Fee, upon credit

approval. Lease based off of
15k miles per year.

20% Deposil Required to Hold Unit. All quotes valid
(or 30 days. All stock units are subject to prior sale.
Price or Payments do not include lax. license,
or delivery unless staled.

Sales Rep. Signature:

Date:

Page 2 of 4



THEBUSCENTE^
FAMILY OF COMPANIES

PROPOSAL EXCLUSIVELY FOR:

Jasper County Senior Center
Pmposal Date: February 16, 2023

M. Rahman

Commercial Bus Sales
PREPARED BY

A TRADITION IN TRANSPORTATION SINCE 1972
Atlanta, GA

mrahman@thebuscenter.com

(404) 805-9657
MID-SOUTH
BUS CENTER

THEBUSCEIVITER

ATLANTA
ATlANtA, CA

TRANSPORTATION
SOUTH

ft ntMINGKAM, 41NASHVIlLt, IN

r
2017 StarCraft Candidate Transit 70, Miles

a division of Forest River, Inc.

14 Passengers + Driver

Unit# ST-21
1 Unit in Stock

Chassis and Body Specifications OPTIONS INCLUDED

Ford Transit T-350 Chassis

3.7L V-6 Gas Engine

10,360# GVWR

138” Wheelbase

20' Body
84” Wide

Dual Rear Wheels

ABS Hydraulic Brakes

230 Amp Alternator
25 Gallon Fuel Tank

Cruise Control & Tilt Steering Wheel

Automatic Transmission

OEM Dash AC

Power Locks & Windows

LED Interior & Exterior Lights

Interior

Padded Vinyl Walls & Ceiling (gray)

Dual Grab Rails Parallel to Entry Steps

Stanchion & Modesty Panel Behind Driver

Exterior

Stainless Steel Wheel Inserts

Valve Stem Extenders for Inner Rear Wheels

Mud Flaps

J

THEBUSCENTER com

Page 1 of 4



THEBUSCENTE^
FAMILY OF COMPANIES

PROPOSAL EXCLUSIVELY FOR:

Jasper County Senior Center
Proposal Date: February 16. 2023

M. Rahman

Commercial Bus Sales

PREPARED BY

A TRADITION IN TRANSPORTATION SINCE 1972
Atlanta, GA

mrahman@thebuscenter.com

(404) 805-9657

THI=aUSC:i=l\ITI=R

ATLAIMTA
ATiANTA, GA

TRAfSISPORTATION
SOUTH

BIRMINGHAM. Al

r
Floor Plan

I

Trade Information

Page 4 of 4



r
PROPOSAL EXCLUSIVELY FOR:

Jasper County Senior Center
Proposal Date: February 16, 2023THEBUSCENTERl/ M. Rahman

Commercial Bus Sales

PREPARED BY

FAMILY OF COMPANIES
A TRADITION IN TRANSPORTATION SINCE T972

Atlanta, GA

mrahman@thebuscenter.com

(404) 805-9657

TMi=auSCENTER

ATLANTA
At I A N T A, C A

TRANSPORTATIOIM

SOUTH
VIAMINCHAM, AL

r
Images

r
%

isp' nils
F  “ I S : ,

r

4

t

THEBUSCENTER com

Page



THEBUSCENTE^
FAMILY OF COMPANIES

PROPOSAL EXCLUSIVELY FOR:

Jasper County Senior Center
Proposal Date: February 16, 2023

M. Rahman
Commercial Bus Sales

PREPARED BY

A TRADITION IN TRANSPORTATION SINCE 1972
Atlanta, GA

mrahman@thebuscenter.com

(404) 805-9657

TMEBUSCOENTER

AT LAMTA
ATLANTA, GA

TRAIMSPORTATIOfSI
aOUTH

0t(tM|NGHAM. AL

OPTIONS INCLUDED

Seating

Freedman Shield Driver Seat

Re-Upholstered Driver Seat to Match Passenger Seats

(4) Freedman Mid-Back Passenger Seats

(4) Double Freedman Foldaway Seats

Level 4 Cloth Upholstery

Seat Color; Insc. Blue

Armrests

2pt Retractable Seatbelts

Electrical

Intermotive FlexTech Electrical System

LED Dome Lights

Door Activated Interior Lights

Audio / Video Equipment

Deluxe AM/FM/CD Player

6 Upgraded Jensen Speakers

Climate Control

Safety80,000 BTU Rear AC System w/ Dual Compressors

65,000 BTU Rear Heater

Heater Booster Pump

ADA / Paratransit

Rear Back Up Camera
First Aid Kit, Fire Extinguisher. & Safety Triangles

Back Up Alarm
Flat 6" X 16" Driver Mirror

White Standee LineDouble Wheelchair Lift Doors in Rear of Bus

Gateway Intermotive Fast Idle System w/ Interlock

Braun Century Wheelchair Lift

(2) Sure-Lok Deluxe Retractor Tie-Down Kits

Storage Pouches for Tie-Do\Ams

ADA Priority Seating & Wheelchair Signage

Flooring

Black RCA Rubber Flooring w/ Ribbed Aisle

White Step Nosing

Factory Warranties

There are no Factory Warranties Remaining on this Unit

30 Day Warranty Or 3,000 Miles (Whichever comes first)

Additional Options (NOT Included in Pricing)

Rear Back Up Camera - $850.00

Delivery - Included
Additional Wheelchair Tie-Downs - $595 ea.

Basic Custom Lettering & Logo - $450

New Full Body Paint - Included
Doc Fee ● $250.00 / GA TAVT $3854.40

Luggage

Driver Overhead Storage Compartment

PRICING:

$ 62,250

$ 3,850

Unit Price
Doors & Windows

Discounts:
36" Wide Electric Passenger Entry Door

Rear Door w/ Upper Window

Tinted T-Slider Passenger Windows
Total Price
(FOB Acworth,GA)

$ 58,400

Est. LEASE Pmt. 60 Months

Est. FINANCE Pmt. 60 Months $ 1,253
Customer Signature:

Terms and Conditions:‘Est. Lease and Finance

payments based on SO down

* S400 Doc Fee, upon credit

approval. Lease based off of

12k miles per year.

20% Deposit Required to Hold Unit. All quotes valid

for 30 days. All slock units are subject to prior sale.

Price or Payments do not include lav. license,

or delivery unless slated.

Sales Rep. Signature:

Date:

Page 2 of 4



THEBUSCENTE^
FAMILY OF COMPANIES

PROPOSAL EXCLUSIVELY FOR:

Jasper County Senior Center
Proposal Date: February 16, 2023

M. Rahman

Commercial Bus Sales

PREPARED BY

A TRADITION IN TRANSPORTATION SINCE 1972
Atlanta, GA

mrahman@thebuscenter.com

(404) 805-9657

MIO-SOUTH
BUS CENTER

THEBUSCEIMTEn

ATLANTA
AUANTA, GA

TRANSPOPTATIOIM

SOUTH
BIRMINGHAM. AlNASHVUIC. TN

r
Pre-Owned 2012 Elkhart Coach ECU - 28 miles

12 Passengers + 2
Wheelchair Positions

Unit#AU1258

1 Unit in Stock (28,000 Miles)

Chassis and Body Specifications OPTIONS INCLUDED

InteriorFord E-350 Chassis

6.8L V-10 Gas Engine

12,500# GVWR

158" Wheelbase

24’ Body
96" Wide

Dual Rear Wheels

ABS Hydraulic Brakes

225 Amp Alternator

40 Gallon Fuel Tank

Cruise Control & Tilt Steering Wheel
Automatic Transmission

OEM Dash AC

LED Interior & Exterior Lights

Va' Plywood Subfloor

White Step Nosing

Protective Rust Inhibitor Applied Underneath Bus

Spring Suspension System

Fully Welded Steel Cage Construction

FRP Walls & Ceiling

Dual Grab Rails Parallel to Entry Steps

Ceiling Grab Rail on Driver & Pass Side

Stanchion & Modesty Panel at Pass Entry

Stanchion & Modesty Panel Behind Driver

Exterior

Stainless Steel Wheel Inserts

Valve Stem Extenders for Inner Rear Wheels

Mud Flaps

LED Rear Center Mount Brake Light

THEBUSCENTER com

Page 1 of 4



SQd 88% ■n 57

AliWheeDi >350 XLT Medium RootS Filtef iS-Pas&en^er Seats

Check Avaliabllrty

$47,9982020 Ford Transit Passenger Van

3b0 XI Low Root Passenqe< Van A great price

O 29,325 miles

✓ No occtdenis 1 Owner, Personal use only

(h 6cyt Automatic

9 CarMax (ki-stock online)

9t Delivery available*

Tire Pressure Wamln. ..eluetcctti ThInHow seataigBack-up camera

Periling senaora rnwr*

Check Availability



 

 

Business Item 9: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:   March 6, 2023 
 
Subject: Monticello Post Office – Handicap Accessibility – Letter to US Senators and Rep. 
  
 
 
Summary:  
 
 
The Jasper County Post Office needs to be made ADA Compliant.  BOC will discuss submitting a letter to US 
Senators and Representatives.  
 
 
 
 
 
Background:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cost:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion:  
  



 

 

Business Item 10: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Finance   
 
Date:   March 6, 2023 
 
Subject: Application for Congressionally Directed Spending (CDS) Request for FY 2024 –   
 Recreation Park Improvements 
 
 
Summary:  
Staff seeking BOC approval to submit FY 2024 Congressionally Directed Spending (CDS) Request related to 
Jasper County Recreation Park Improvements.  The grant application process includes a detailed budget 
breakdown and project support from local elected officials, State elected officials, community organizations and 
individuals in support of the project. 
 
 
Background:  
Congressionally Directed Spending (CDS) requests will be considered by Senator Ossoff office for FY 2024.  
These are high-impact projects located in Georgia that can be jumpstarted or reach completion with the 
assistance from the Federal Government. 
 
 
Cost:  
$0  
 
 
Recommended Motion:  
Approve request to submit FY 2024 Congressional Directed Spending Request 
Deadline to submit application is March 7, 2023 at 5pm. 
  



2/28/23, 1:43 PM FY2024 CDS Application

https://outreach.senate.gov/iqextranet/EForm.aspx?__cid=SenOssoff&__fid=100013 1/5

[If the form below does not work for you, try visiting this link. Rest of form will load after
your response to question 1.]

 

* Are you a for-profit company? 

Yes No

 
* Please choose the following subcommittee you would wish to submit a project
proposal: 

         
Submitter's Information 
* First Name 

* Last Name 

* Title 

* Organization 

* Phone 

* Email 

* Mailing Address 

* City 

* State 

* Zip 

Office of U.S. Senator Jon Ossoff
   



2/28/23, 1:43 PM FY2024 CDS Application

https://outreach.senate.gov/iqextranet/EForm.aspx?__cid=SenOssoff&__fid=100013 2/5

 
* Requesting Organization Legal Name, the name of the local government or
organization making this request:  

 

 
* Requesting Organization's TIN: 

 

 
* Priority Number Required. If you are submitting multiple requests from the same
entity, you must rank the priority order across all appropriations bills. 

 

 
* Which Congressional offices have you also applied to for this project? 

 

 
Organization's Contact Info, the individual at the organization who will be in charge of
the project and receiving the funds. 
* Point of Contact First Name 

* Point of Contact Last Name 

* Organization 

* Point of Contact Phone Number 

* Point of Contact Email 

* Point of Contact Mailing Address 

Address Line 2 

* Zip 

 
* Project City or County 



2/28/23, 1:43 PM FY2024 CDS Application

https://outreach.senate.gov/iqextranet/EForm.aspx?__cid=SenOssoff&__fid=100013 3/5

 

 
* Project Name. Please use the same name of the project as submitted to other
Members of Congress 

 

 
* Project Summary and Purpose, one sentence only. 

 

 
* Project Justification, 250 words. (Please be concise and provide an adequate
explanation as why this project is a valuable use of Federal taxpayer dollars.) 

 

 
* Project Description, 500 words. Please provide a detailed description of the project, its
history and impact. How is this project important for Georgia and the surrounding
communities? Who will the project be serving and how many will benefit? Please
indicate how you will sustain the project after one year and share the minimum level of
Federal funding required to move the project forward. Please indicate if this project was
submitted to the Senator for FY2023 or if it has received prior CDS funding. 

 

 
* Who will this project benefit? 

 

 
* How many people will the project serve? 

 

 
* Will this project create any new jobs? 

Yes No

 



2/28/23, 1:43 PM FY2024 CDS Application

https://outreach.senate.gov/iqextranet/EForm.aspx?__cid=SenOssoff&__fid=100013 4/5

* How many new jobs will this project create? 

 

 
* What is the location of the project or activity? City, County, State. 

 

 
* Amount Requested. Write out the number. 

 

 
* Project's Full Cost 

 

 
* Does this project have other funding sources? Federal grants or loans, State grants or
loans, private backing, etc.? How much for each source? 

 

 
* Detailed Budget Breakdown. This will include the total cost and non-Federal sources
of funding. Applications without a budget breakdown are considered incomplete. For
example, construction, design/study, equipment, general operations, etc. (.xls, .xlsx,
.doc, or .docx files only, max 20MB) 

Upload File No file chosen

 
* If the requested amount cannot be provided, what is the minimum amount needed to
move the project forward? 

 

 
* Please list all the counties the project would serve. 

 

 
* Please list the Congressional District(s) the project would serve. 

 

 
* Project Support. Please list and upload letters from local elected officials, State
elected officials, community organizations and individuals in support of the project.
Applications without letters of support are considered incomplete. (.pdf, .doc, or .docx
files only, max 20MB) 



 

 

 

Business Item 11: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: BOC 
 
Date:   March 6, 2023 
 
Subject: ACCG Georgia County Internship Program Grant Agreement 
 
 
Summary:  
  
The Association of County Commissioners (ACCG) offers an internship grant program every year.  Staff has 
applied for the grant again this year and been awarded the grant for one paid intern to assist with the county’s 
Keep Jasper Clean Campaign.   
 
The grant program period is from May 1, 2023 – September 1, 2023.  The goal of the grant is for the student to 
learn about specific parts county government operations. 
 
 
The BOC needs to approve the grant agreement, as the funds are to be paid by the county and reimbursed by the 
grant.   
 
 
 
Background:  
 
Jasper County has applied for and received this grant in 2016, and 2018.   
 
 
Cost:  None 
 
Recommended Motion:  
Authorize Chairman to sign the Agreement for the Georgia County Internship Program Grant.  
  



 
 

 
MEMORANDUM  

To: Georgia County Internship Program (GCIP) Grant Recipients for Summer 2023 Grant Period 

From: Michele NeSmith, ACCG Research and Policy Development Director on behalf of the ACCG Civic 
Affairs Foundation  

Re: County Grant Information Packet and Grant Agreement 
 
Date: February 3, 2023 
 
Congratulations on being a grant recipient for the Summer 2023 Georgia County Internship Program 
(GCIP)! We hope that this internship is mutually beneficial to both the county and intern. The intern 
can perform their internship at any time from May 1, 2023-September 1, 2023. Reimbursement 
requests with accompanying proof of hire must be submitted to the Foundation no later than Friday, 
October 16, 2023. Please read this memo and all the materials included in this packet in their 
entirety before you submit the requested documents. 
 
The primary contact for the grant will need to work closely with the Human Resources Department, 
or the person who manages the county's hiring practices in that there are many employment 
related forms that must be completed by the county and the intern close to the date of hire. If the 
primary contact for the grant changes before the end of the grant period, please contact me 
immediately and provide the new contact with their email and phone numbers.  
 
While the Foundation is aware that it may take time to have your board formally approve the grant 
agreement through a meeting of the board of commissioners, please make every effort to return it as 
soon as possible so that it can be finalized by the Foundation.  When an intern has been hired, the 
Foundation should be notified, and a copy of the Intern Consent Form and the Intern Information Form 
should be submitted as soon as possible, but no later than July 28, 2023.  The county should not wait 
until the end of the grant period to submit this information.  
 
Also, if you have previously participated in the grant program you are aware that we request that the 
intern evaluation form and photo(s) of the intern be submitted. In that past this has been an optional 
requirement, but it is now mandatory. Please ensure that both are submitted in order to be eligible for 
the reimbursement.  
 
Enclosed in this packet is the grant checklist, frequently asked questions, and an intern 
supervisor’s guide. The grant agreement is included in a separate attachment and includes the 
following: 1) grant award letter 2) county grant application, 3) E-Verify usage and acknowledgement 
form, 4) grant reimbursement form 5) intern evaluation form, 6) the intern consent form, and 7) the 



 
intern information form.  
 
 
In order to receive the grant funds, the county must submit the following to the Foundation: 
 

1) Signed Grant Agreement – as soon as possible 
 

2)  Signed Intern Consent Form –  beginning of the internship but no later than July 28 
 

3)   Signed and Completed Intern Information Form –  beginning of the internship but no later 
than July 28 

 
4)   Intern Photo-by September 1 (head shot and action photo) 
 
5)  Proof of Hire (offer letter and a copy of the E-Verify Usage and Acknowledgement Form)  
     by October 16, 2023 
 
6)   Signed and Completed Grant Reimbursement Form – by October 16, 2023 
 
7)    Proof of Payment-- by October 16, 2023 
 
7)    Completed Intern Evaluation -by October 16, 2023 
 

 
Once the county has submitted a l l  the  i tem s  l is ted  abov e, the Foundation will provide 
reimbursements for the wages, workers’ compensation coverage, and Federal Insurance 
Contributions Act (FICA) for the county internship positions that have been approved by the 
Foundation. The money provided for FICA and workers’ compensation must be used for these 
purposes. The county is required to cover all interns hired through the GCIP under their workers’ 
compensation policy. Grant reimbursements may take 6-8 weeks to process. Please note that 
your county will not receive your grant reimbursement until you have submitted ALL the 
requested information and provide proof that an intern has been hired. 
 
Over the course of the internship, the Foundation will be checking in with the internship supervisor(s) 
for your county to ensure that the internship is going smoothly.  The Foundation will also be visiting 
certain counties in order to interview the intern(s) and supervisor(s) and to take photos to promote the 
program. All visits will be scheduled prior to arrival. If you have any questions or concerns, please 
contact me at mnesmith@accg.org or at 404-992-8737.  
 
Thanks again for your participation in this program. 
 

mailto:mnesmith@accg.org


ACCG Civic Affair Foundation – Georgia County Internship Program FAQs Page 1 
 

 

 
 

Georgia County Internship Program (GCIP) 
Frequently Asked Questions  

 
 
Will the grant contract need to be approved by the board of commissioners? 
 
Yes. The contract needs to be approved by the board of commissioners and entered on the minutes as 
required by state law at O.C.G.A. § 36-10-1. 
 
What qualifications does an intern have to meet? 
 
The program is open to undergraduate and graduate students from a variety of educational 
backgrounds, provided a student’s abilities are appropriate to the intern project proposed by the 
county. Since county governments provide a wide range of services, counties are encouraged to be 
creative in proposing internship opportunities across diverse areas of study from engineering and law to 
human resources and veterinary sciences.   
 
Recent college graduates may be selected for an internship provided they can provide proof that their 
graduation was within six months of the start date of the internship. High school students who are 
dually enrolled in a college program and are 16 years of age or older may also participate.  
 
How many hours should an intern work and how should this time be scheduled? 
 
GCIP grant funds will pay internship costs for up to a maximum of 200 internship hours. It will be up to 
the county and the intern to determine the work schedule in terms of the number of hours worked per 
week and total number of weeks to be worked. It is recommended that the minimum number of hours 
worked per week is 15. 
 
If a grant for multiple interns is awarded to a county, this does not mean each intern has to work the 
same schedule or the same number of hours as long as the total number of hours worked under the 
grant does not exceed 200 for any one intern.  
 
 
When can internships be completed? 
 
A student may start an internship at any time during the applicable Grant Period. Students must 
complete their internship no later than the last day of the applicable Grant Period.  
 
 
 
 



ACCG Civic Affair Foundation – Georgia County Internship Program FAQs Page 2 
 

What if my intern doesn’t complete the full 200 hours? 
 
Interns are not required to work the total 200 hours  for the county to receive the grant, although the 
Foundation will only reimburse the county under the grant based on the actual number of hours worked 
if less than 200.   
 
While GCIP grant funds cannot be provided past the applicable Grant Period, a county and an intern can 
extend the duration of any internship based on mutual agreement. All expenses incurred beyond the 
grant period will be paid by the county.  
 
My county was awarded one internship. Can I split the grant to hire two interns? 
 
Yes. If a county was awarded a grant for one intern and later determined that more than one intern was 
needed, the grant can be split into two 100-hour internships if the county abides by all the requirements 
of the grant agreement. However, the Foundation must first be contacted  to ensure the requested split 
meets all the grant requirements. The grant for one intern cannot be split into more than two 100-hour 
internships.  
 
How much do interns get paid under GCIP and how is this funded?  
 
The county pays the intern directly and the Foundation reimburses the county for all approved costs 
after all required paperwork has been provided.  
 
The wage for interns for the 2023 grant period is $12.00 per hour.  Interns cannot be paid less than 
$12.00 per hour. The total hourly pay for a maximum 200-hour internship  may not exceed $2400 in 
wages, $183.60 in FICA, and up to $24 in workers’ compensation costs for a maximum reimbursement of 
$2607.60 per intern. An intern paid using GCIP grant funds must be covered under the county’s workers’ 
compensation plan.  
 
If a county wants to pay an intern more than $12.00 per hour, that amount over $12.00 will need to be 
paid by the county along with the additional FICA and workers’ compensation costs applicable to the 
additional salary. The GCIP grant does not cover wages paid over $12.00 per hour nor does it pay for 
more than 200 hours of employment during any grant period. 
 
 
Can the county extend the internship beyond the 200 hours/grant period? 
Yes, but the county will be responsible for all related costs beyond the 200 hours and timeframe 
provided in the grant agreement.  
 
What if an intern needs academic credit? 
 
If a student wants to obtain academic credit for the internship, it will be the responsibility of the county 
to work with the student and the student’s academic institution to fulfill this requirement. The 
Foundation is not responsible for securing academic credit or certifying work performed by the intern 
for this purpose.  
 
 
 



ACCG Civic Affair Foundation – Georgia County Internship Program FAQs Page 3 
 

What if my county has already hired an intern for the grant period? 
 
If a county already has identified an intern who meets the requirements for this program for a specific 
Grant Period, the county is eligible to receive grant funding for that intern as long as it submits all 
required application materials by the applicable deadline and is selected to receive a grant. Note that 
the internship must be completed within the applicable Grant Period.  
 
Who is responsible for recruiting interns? 
 
It will be the responsibility of the county to recruit and hire their intern.  This requires advertising 
through the county website, area technical colleges and universities, contacting department heads of 
colleges, etc. The county is also responsible for selecting applicants to interview, interviewing, and hiring 
interns.  
 
The Foundation will assist in this process by posting county positions on its website www.civicaffairs.org  
to provide statewide exposure to interested students and sharing these postings with career service 
directors across the state.  If needed, the Foundation can further assist in this process if the county 
needs additional assistance or direction on how to recruit interns.   
 
What happens if a county is not able to recruit an intern for its GCIP grant? 
 
If no intern can be identified, the GCIP grant will be rescinded for that grant period. 
 
What if the grant project cannot be performed as provided in the county application ?  

Contact the Foundation immediately to see if a possible accommodation can be made. Grant awards are 
based on competitive scoring related to the project submitted. As such, grant projects should be 
performed as described.  If an accommodation cannot be made, the grant will be rescinded.  

Can interns perform private projects for elected officials or staff? 

No. Interns are not allowed to work on projects that are not county-related. The purpose of the 
internship is for the student to learn about county government through a project that benefits the 
county, not a county staff member or elected official.  

Can interns work on political campaigns? 

Interns funded by GCIP are prohibited from participating in any type of political campaign work. 

 

 

http://www.civicaffairs.org/


 

ACCG Civic Affairs Foundation – Georgia County Internship Program, County Supervisor’s Guide Page 11 
 

County Considerations for Future Internships 

The Foundation hopes that your county’s experience with the Georgia County Internship 
Program is a success. Before applying for future GCIP grants, it may be helpful to review the 
following questions to ensure that your county is getting the most out of the program.  
 
Questions about the Project(s) Assigned: 

1. Was the intern able to complete the project assigned within the time allowed? If not, why? 

2. Did the intern have too much “down time”? Was enough work available for the intern? 

3. Was the type of project assigned suitable for college undergraduate or graduate students? 
Was it too challenging or not challenging enough? 

4. Is there enough project work available for a future internship? 

5. What type of future projects does your office need assistance with that would be suitable 
for an intern? 

Questions about Supervision of the Intern: 

1. Did your schedule permit you to be available to assist the intern by answering questions 
and/or providing input on a project? 

2. Were you able to provide the intern with detailed, clear instructions on how to complete a 
project? 

3. Did the intern have other staff members who could answer questions and provide assistance? 

4. Should you increase or decrease the number of interns requested for the GCIP grant period 
based on your availability to supervise? 

Questions about Possible Future Requests for GCIP Intern Grant Support: 

1. Did the previous intern have the right skill set for your office?  

2. Should you change the skill or academic qualifications required for the next intern? 

3. Are undergraduate or graduate students better suited for the types of projects that your 
office provides? 

4. Did the applicants that interviewed for the previous internship meet your expectations 
and/or have the right type of qualifications for the position? 

5. Was your previous internship posting detailed enough to generate interest? 



 
 
Business Item 12: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:   March 6, 2023 
 
Subject: Vehicle Quotes – County Manager Vehicle 
  
 
 
Summary:  
 
Riverside Ford 
 
2023 Ford Explorer 
Stock # 23T140   $39,569 
I in stock 
 
2023 Rord Explorer 
Stock # 23T063   $45,143 
I in stock 
 
 
 
Background:  
 
Current Vehicle 
1998 Jeep Cherokee 
236,248 Miles 
Out of Service 
 
 
 
Cost:   
 
$tock # 23T140 $39,569.00 
Stock # 23T063 $45,143.00 
Fleet/State Contract Pricing 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion:  
Authorize County Manager to purchase a 2023 Ford Explorer Stock # 23T140 from Riverside Ford in the 
amount of $39,569.00. 
  























 

 
Business Item 13: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Human Resources 
 
Date:    March 6, 2023 
 
Subject:  Human Resources and County Boards Report 
   
 
Summary:  
 
Staff will present a Human Resource Report and upcoming Board Appointments needed. 
 
 
 
Background:                                                                                                                                                                 
 
 
Staff has been requested to provide a Human Resource Report along with upcoming expired Board 
appointments to the Board of Commissioners.  Reports will be provided in the months of March, June, 
September, and December going forward. 
 
 
 
Cost: 
None    
 
 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion:                                                                                                                                    
None Required 
  



 

 

Jasper County Human Resources Report 
Period Covered: December 2022– February 2023 

 

Current Open Positions 
 
Code Enforcement Officer 
Operator I 
CDL Driver  
EMT  
Paramedics  
911 Dispatchers 
Public Works/Landfill Operator 

New Hires/Transfers 
 
Public Works – 2 
Recreation – Full-Time – 1 
Recreation – Part-Time - 1 
 

Terminations/Resignations 
Sheriff – 1 
Jail – 1 
Recreation – 1 
Planning & Zoning - 1 

Total Employees = 160 
Full-time = 109 
Part-time = 51 
 
 
 
 



Page | 2 

                                                                      
Jasper County Boards Report 

Period Covered: June 2022– August 2022 
 

Upcoming Board Appointments Needed: 
Jasper County Recreation Board: 1  
Jasper County Public Facilities Authority - 4 
 
 



 

 

Business Item 14: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:   March 6, 2023 
 
Subject: Schedule Work Sessions and Called Meetings as Needed 
  
 
 
Summary:  
 
Schedule Work Sessions and Called Meetings as Needed 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Background:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cost:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion:  
Board Discretion 
 

 

 

 


	MONTICELLO, GEORGIA
	*** The meeting will be live streamed Via Facebook on the Jasper County Georgia Facebook Page.
	Insert from: "Agenda Detail 1 - Final Plat for Lakeview Phase 2.pdf"
	Sheets and Views
	Final Plat


	Insert from: "Agenda Detail -  Presentation 2 - Proclamation Jasper County Long-Term Recovery Committee draft.pdf"
	PROCLAMATION OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS REGARDING THE ESTABLISHMENT OF A JASPER COUNTY LONG-TERM RECOVERY COMMITTEE

	Insert from: "Agenda Detail - 2023 GCIP Grant.pdf"
	01 Summer GCIP Grant Memo 2023
	02 Summer GCIP County Checklist 2023
	03 Summer GCIP Internship FAQs 2023
	04 GCIP County Intern Supervisors Guide 2022

	Insert from: "Agenda Detail 13 - Human Resources Report for March 2023.pdf"
	Current Open Positions
	New Hires/Transfers
	Terminations/Resignations
	Total Employees = 160
	Upcoming Board Appointments Needed:


